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PAT 43,249.61 161 227.14

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Global Economic Scenario
The global economy witnessed strong fall in the market opportunities due to breakdown of pandemic
"COVIO-19" leading to weak global trade, financial stability risks and significant adjustment challenges,
along with financial market tensions that may continue to impede growth further which cast a shadow
on business and consumer sentiment.

Indian Economic Scenario
The lack of private partlclpatlon in fuelling a new investment cycle shifts the burden completely to
government spending, which has a lower multiplier for the overall economy. The Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) announced multiple rate cuts as well as infused liquidity through open market operations to ease
the liquidity stress witnessed in the markets.

Industry Structure and Developments
Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) continue to playa critical role in the Indian economy.
NBFCs are emerged as an alternative to mainstream banking. They are also emerging as an integral
part of Indian Financial System and are contributing commendably towards Government's agenda of
financial inclusion. NBFCs in India have recorded marked growth in recent years.

The success of NBFCs has been driven by factors like their ability to control risks, to adapt to changes
and create demand in markets that are likely to remain unexplored by bigger players. Thus, the need for
uniform practices and level playing field for NBFCs in India is crucial. NBFCs, in India, are today
operating in a very dynamic scenario especially after the revised regulatory framework by the RBI
launched with the objective of harmonizing working of NBFCs with banks and financial institutions and
address regulatory gaps and arbitrage.

Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFls) is a heterogeneous group of institutions that caters to a wide
range of financial requirements and can broadly be divided into Financial Institutions (Fls) and Non-
Bank Financial Companies (NBFCs). With the growing importance assiqned to financial inclusion,
NBFCs have been regarded as important financial intermediaries particular for the small scale and retail
sectors. Thera are two broad categories of NBFCs based on whether they accept public deposit,
namely deposit taking NBFCs (NBFC-D) and non-deposit taking NBFCs (NBFC-ND).

Company Information
Kiduja India Limited ("Kiduja") is a Non-Banking Finance Company "NBFC", registered with the Reserve
Bank of India as a Non-systematically Important Non-deposit taking NBFC.

Segment Wise Performance
The Company's business activity falls within a single business segment i.e. Non-Banking Services. The
performance of the business is as below:

(Rs. in Thousands)
---P-a-rt-ic-u-la-r-::;---.........,...-Z...l..01-9-·-i-o·- --- 2('16·19-
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Total Income - 2.06,690.22
PBT & Exceptional Item (4.269.19) 1,61,233.77

..E?<<;eQ~_onalltem 47,50~:~-
PST 43,239.24 1,61.233.77

EPS (Before Exceptional Item) (2.48) 94.01
_EPS (After Ex~R_tio_n_a_ll_te_m---'I)'--'---_2_5._2_2__ I 94.01
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Opportunities & Threats
NBFCs have been playing a very important role both from macroeconomic prospective and the
structure of the Indian Financial System. NBFCs are perfect or even better alternatives to the
conventional Banks for meeting various financial requirements of a business enterprise. They offer
quick and efficient services without making one to go through the complex rigmarole of conventional
banking formalities. However, to survive and to constantly grow, NBFCs have to focus on their core
strengths while improving on weaknesses. They will have to be very dynamic and constantly endeavour
to search for new products and services in order to survive in this even competitive financial market.

Outlook
As the pandemic has spread across the globe, the adverse impact of COVIO-19 has overshadowed
global macroeconomic outlook. Several multilateral agencies have projected recession for the global
economy in the calendar year 2020 with the IMF (International Monetary Fund) warning of the worst
global recession in almost a century. The RBI estimates real GOP growth of India to remain in negative
territory in FY21. Rating agencies and economic think-tanks have significantly reduced India's growth
projections for FY21 to -2% to -5% on the back of extended lackdown, factory shutdowns, supply chain
disruptions, travel restrictions, reduced discretionary spending and recessionary outlook for the global
economy. To avert steeper decline in economic growth, major countries have used a mix of monetary
and fiscal tools to ensure liquidity and credit flow to their economies. In India, while the RBI has been
doing the heavy lifting, various policy measures announced by the Government in its Economic
Package are perceived to be more useful in the medium to long term. The nature of lockdown observed
in India is amongst the strictest in the world, considering the domestic policy space to control its
negative impact is limited. The consequent steeper decline in economic activities could adversely affect
financial markets. The COVID-19 led disruptions have severely affected the fiscal arithmetic of both
Union and State Governments. It is already reflected in the large additional borrowings envisaged by
both Union and State Governments along with expenditure rationalisation measures including reduction
in capital expenditure. Such steep rise in government market borrowings will have hardening bias on
yields and put pressure on the cost of borrowings of companies and NBFCs.

RiSk and Concerns
The Company is exposed to specific risks that are particular to its business and the environment within
which it operates including economic cycle, market risk and credit risks. Managing risk effectively also
helps in achieving the desired outcome, while fixing responsibility and accountability. The Company
especially focuses on improving sensitivity to assessment of risks and improving methods of
computation of risk weights and capital charges. The risk assessment and mitigation procedure are
reviewed by the Board periodically.

Internal Control System and Their Adequacy
The Company has an effective internal control system. commensurate with its size and nature to ensure
smooth business operatlons.ln order to provide reasonable assurance that all assets are safeguarded
and protected from any kind of loss or misuse, transactions are authorized, recorded and reported
properly and that all applicable statutes and corporate policies are duly complied with.

Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational P!rformanC!
Total Profit after Tax for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 stood at Rs. 43,249.61
Thousandsas against Rs. 1.61,227.14 Thousandsfor the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019. The
EPS after exceptional item for the financial year ended on 318tMarch, 2020 stood at RS.25.22 per share
as against Rs.94.01 per share for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2019. The Management of the
Company foresees the future opportunities in respect to the growth of the Company.

Human Resources
The Company believes that employees are the key to achievement of Company's objectives and
strategies. The Company provides to the employees a fair and equitable work environment and support
from their peers with a view to develop their capabilities leaving them with the freedom to act and to
take responsibilities for the task assigned. We provide our employees outstanding career development
opportunities and reward to the staff for their good performance and loyalty to the organization.
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Industrial Relationsfront, including number of people employed
During the year under review. your company was engaged in the business of dealing in securities and
other related activities and hence. the Company has not established any relationship with workers, but
is having a cordial relationship with its employees. No employees were appointee during the FY 2019-
20

Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the Immediately
previous financial year) in key financial ratios

• Debtors Turnover- N.A
• Inventory Turnover- N.A
• Interest Coverage Ratio - N.A
• Current Ratio - N.A
• Debt Equity Ratio - N.A
• Operating Profit Margin (%) - N.A
• Net Profit Margin (%) - N.A

Details of any change in Retum on Net Worth as compared to the Immediately previous financial
year along with a detailed explanation thereof
During the year under review. the net worth of your company was negative and as SUCh it is not
possible to compute the Return on Net Worth. However, for FY 2019-20 your company has earned
profit of Rs.43,249.61 thousands and for the preceding FY 2018-19 your company has earned profit of
RS.1 ,61 ,227.14 thousands.

Cautionary Statement
Statement in Management Discussion and Analysis may be forward looking within the meaning of
applicable securities laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results, which could be
different from what the Directors envisage in terms of future performance and outlook. The Company
assumes no responsibilities in respect of the forward-looking statements herein, which may undergo
changes in future on the basis of subsequent developments. information or events.
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BOARD'S REPORT

To,
The Members of
Kiduja India Limited,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 34th Annual Report of Kiduja India Limited ("the
Company") on the business and operations for the Financial Year ended 31stMarch 2020.

1. Business Overview / State of Company's affairs
During the year under review the Company have earned profit of Rs.43,249.61 thousands as
against Rs.1,61 ,227.14 thousands for the financial year ended on 31at March, 2019.

The Company is confident of performing better in the future as compared to period under review.

2. Financial Performance
The Financial performance of the company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 is
summarized below:

(Rs. in Thousands)
For the For the

year ended year ended
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Revenue from Operations - 2,06,688.80
Other Income - 1.42f-:::... .. .
Total Revenue - 2,06,690.22
Less: Expenses 4,269.19 45,456.45
Profit I (Loss) before Tax & Exceptional Item (4269.19) 1,61,233.77
Exceptional item 47,508.43 -
Profit I (Loss) before Tax 43,239.24 1,61,233.77
Less: Tax Expenses __.PQ·~Zl 6.63
Profit I (Loss) after tax 43249.61 161,227.14
Other Comprehensive Income - --= ...._._..............
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year _. 43,249.61 1.61.227.14

The Covid-19 crisis has caused a slowdown to the whole country, and there is no denying to say It
has not impacted the business operation of the Company. Our business practices and strong
enterprise risk management framework has helped in dealing with such an unprecedented crisis.
Our approach has been 10 respond and not react to critical situations. In these testing times,
focussing on business continuity plans, adopting "new ways of dOing business" and to the "new
normal" have been our priority along with nurturing relationship With our stakeholders by supporting
them.

3. Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
The Company has adopted lndian Accounting Standards Clnd AS') notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 from 0181

Aprif, 2019.

4. Dividend
The Directors do not recommend any dividend for the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2020.

5. Transfer to Reserves
The Company did not transfer any amount to reserves during the year under review.

6. Holding. Subsidiary and Associate Company
During the year under review, the Company did not have any Holding, SUbsidiary, Associate and
Joint Venture Company and there were no companies which became or ceased to be the
Company's Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company: accordingly, reporting on the
highlights of performance of Suosidlartes, Associates and Joint Venture companies and their



5

contribution to the overall performance of the Company during the period under report, is not
required to be made.

7. Revision of Financial Statements
There was no revision of the financial statements pertaining to previous financial years, during the
year under review.

8. Deposits
The Company has not accepted any deposits within the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) and under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year ended 31st March, 2020 and accordingly, no amounts on
account of principal or interest on public deposits were outstanding as on 31st March, 2020.

9. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
As on the date of report the Board of the Company comprises the below mentioned 4 (Four)
Directors:

Sr. No. DIN Designation
--

Name
1 Mr. Ashish D Jaipuria * 00025537 Chairman and Managing Director

~,-~

2 Ms. Archana A Jaipuria ** 00025586 Non-Executive Woman Director
3 Mr. OmPrakash Agarwal # 00671355 Independent Director
4 Mr. Samir Sanghai# 02469690 Independent Director ---_"-"--

During the year under review, Ms. Kirti D. Jaipuria (Din:00025564) resigned as Director of the
Company with effect from close of the business hours on 02nd March, 2020. The Board placed on
records its sincere appreciation of the valuable contribution made by her to the Company.

# The tenure of Mr. Om Prakash Agarwal and Mr. Samir Sanghai as Independent Directors of the
Company have expired on 31st March, 2020, accordingly, the Board of Directors at their Meeting
held on 13th March, 2020 re-appointed Mr. OmPrakash Agarwal and Mr. Samir Sanghai as
Independent Directors for a second term of 5 (five) years i.e. from 151 April, 2020 to 31 st March, 2025
subject to the Shareholders approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

'*" The tenure of Mr. Ashish D. Jaipuria as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company has
expired and he is eligible to be re-appointment. Accordingly, the Board of Directors at their Meeting
held on 30LI1 June, 2020 re-appointed Mr. Ashish D. Jaipuria as Chairman and Managing Director of
the Company for a term of 3 (three) years i.e. from 1st July, 2020 till 30th June, 2023 subject to the
Shareholders approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

** In terms of Section 152(6) of the Act read with the Articles of Association of the Company, Ms.
Archana Jaipuria, Director being longest in office, shall retire by rotation and being eligible has
offered herself for reappointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

A brief profile of Mr. Ashish D. Jaipuria. Ms. Archana Jaipuria and Mr. OmPrakash Agarwal and Mr.
Samir Sanghai has been included in the notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting of
the Company.

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the provisions of Section 164 of
the Companies Act 2013 none of the Directors on the Board of your Company are disqualified from
being appointed I continuing as Directors.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Darshan Kumar Jain is Chief
Financial Officer {Key Managerial Personnel)of the Company as on the date of this Report.

There was no change in the Key Managerial Personnels during the year under review.

10. Statement on Declaration given by Independent Dlr!~tor!
1nterms of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 every
individual who is being appointed as Independent Director or who intends to get appointed as an
independent need to apply to the institute for inclusion of his name in the data bank.
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In this regard, declarations were received from Mr. OmPrakash Agarwal and Mr. Samir Sanghai
Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as
specified in Section 149(6) and Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of the Company also conclude its overall satisfaction on the integrity, expertise and
experience of the independent Directors of the Company.

11. Annual Evaluation of the performance of the Board. Its Committees and of Individual
Directors
The Board of Directors at their Meeting held on 30th June, 2020 carried out the annual evaluation of
its own periormance as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees and individual
Directors. including Chairman of the Board for the Financial Year 2019-20 and expressed its
satisfaction as to their performance.

This exercise was carried out through a structured questionnaire prepared separately for Board,
Committees and individual Directors. The questionnaire for Board evaluation was prepared taking
into consideration various aspects of the Board's functioning such as adequacy of the composition
and role of the Board, Board meeting and reporting process, effectiveness of strategies. risk
management systems, external relationships, ethics and governance framework. Committee
performance was evaluated on the basis of its composition. effectiveness of committee meetings,
etc.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of
individual directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the
board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and
constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.

In a separate meeting of the Independent Directors, the performance of Non-Independent Directors,
the Board as a whole and of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of
Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors. Performance evaluation of both the Independent
Directors was carried out by the entire Board. excluding the Independent Director being evaluated.

12. Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or tribunals which
would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

13. Material Changes and Commitments affecting theflnanclal position of the company
There were no material changes and commitments, that would affect financial position ot the
Company from the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate
and the date of the Director's Report.

14. Change in Nature of Business. If any
During the year under review, there has not been any change in the nature of the business of the
Company.

15. Conservation of Energy. Research and Development. Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings & Outgo

• Conservation of Energy
As required under Section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has taken necessary steps in minimizing the
usage of energy to the extent possible to reduce the cost of energy.

• Research & Development and Technology Absorption
Since the Company is operating in Service Sector, provisions of Research & Development and
Technology Absorption are not applicable to the company.

• Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
The Company has no foreign exchange earnings and outgo.
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16. Particulars of Employees pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
A statement giving particulars of employees pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules. 2014 is enclosed to this Report as Annexure A
appended hereto and forms part of this report.

17. Extract of Annual Return
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, Extract of the Annual
Return in Form MGT-9 for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 made under the provisions of
Section 92(3) of the Act is attached as Annexure B which forms part of this Report.

18. Board Meetings
The Board generally meets 4-6 times during the year. All the meetings are conducted as per
designed and structured agenda. All agenda items are backed by necessary supporting information
and documents to enable the board to take informed decisions. Adequate notice is given to all
Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda are sent in
advance.

The Company held a minimum of one board meeting in every quarter with a gap not exceeding 120
days between two board meetings. During the year ended 31st March, 2020, a (Eight) Board
Meetings were held, the details of which is as under:

Board Meetin h Id d . th Ygs e urlng~_~e ear: -----_ .......
Sr. Dates on which the Total Strength No of Directors
No. !3<?~!dMeetings were held of the Board Present. _ ...__ .. ---_._-- ...,.... ......... _.
1 25th April. 2019 5 4

.,...,_ .._-- ._-

2 30th May, 2019 5 5-
3 091h AUQust. 2019 5

f-.---
4

12'h September. 2019-'--
- -~--

4 5 4 . .-._-_,.-._-"
5 22nd October, 2019 5 4.... oa1h November, 2019

--
6 5 5
7 '14th Februarv. 2020 5 5
a 131h March, 2020 4 4

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting:-- .. _--- _._
Attendance at the Board Meetings held on AGM held on

Name. of the Director 25th 30th 09th 12th 22fld 08th 14th 13111 12l11Sept,
Apr. May, Aug. Sept, Oct, Nov, Feb, Mar. 2019
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2020 2020._-_-

Mr. Ashish D. Jaipuria t/ t/ t/ t/ t/ t/ ,( ..; ./

wMs. Kirti D. Jaipuria Leave of t/ Leave of Leave of Leave nf t/ ,( NA t/
Absence, Absence Absence Absence------ --

Ms_Arcnana.ialpuna 0/ 0/ 0/ 0/ 0/ 0/ 0/ 0/ 0/
---_. __ ... --_ ... _-- .........._ ......._--

Mr. OmPrakash Agarwal ..I ..I ..I ,( t/ ,( ,( ..I .,I

Mr. Samir Sanghai ,/ ,/ ,/ ,/ ..I ..I ..I ..I
--.-~

..I I
* Ms. Klrll D. Jalpuna resigned as Director of the Company w.e.f close of business hours on 02nd Marcil. 2020

19. SharI Capital
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.17,500 thousands divided into 17,50,000 Equity
Shares of Rs.1 0 each and the Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Company is Rs_17 t 150
thousands divided into 1,715,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each.

During the year ended 31St March 2020. there has been no change in the share capital of the
Company.

The Company has not allotted any shares. bonus shares, equity shares with differential rights nor
granted stock options nor issued sweat equity during the financial year ended on 31:11 March 2020.
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The Company does not have a Scheme of ESOP and accordingly, disclosure under Section 67{3) of
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of voting rights not exercised directly by the employees in
respect of shares to which the scheme relates is not required to be made.

Mr. Ashish D. Jaipuria, Managing Director of the Company holds 11,15,000 (65.01 %) equity shares
of the Company.

20. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with Related Parties
In accordance with the provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder, the transactions entered with related parties are in the ordinary course of business and
on an arm's length pricing basis, the details of which are provided under Note 22 forming part of the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

21. Particulars of Investments. Loans and Guarantees under Section 186 of the Companies Act.
2013
As the Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company registered with the RBI, the provisions of
Section 186 except sub-section (1) regarding particulars of the investment made shall not apply to
the Company pursuant to Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not advanced any loans or given any guarantee or security which is covered
under Section 186 of the Companies Act. 2013,

22. Internal Control Systems and their adequacy:
Your Company has proper and adequate systems, documented polices, defined authority matrix,
and internal controls to ensure efficiency of operations, compliance with internal systems I policies
and applicable laws.

All audit observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit Committee of the
Board. The Audit Committee reviews and evaluates adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
internal control environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations. The Board
of Directors are of the view that your Company's internal control systems are commensurate with
the nature of its business, size and complexity of its operations.

The internal control systems I policies of your Company are supplemented with regular reviews by
the management and checks by intemal auditors. The main function of the Internal Auditors is to
provide to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, an objective assurance of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the organization's risk management control and govemance process. The Audit
Committee periodically reviews various risks associated with the business of the Company and
ensure that they have an integrated view of risks faced by the Company.

23. Adequacy of Interna! Financial Coo1[2l, rellted to financial statements
The Company has in place adequate Internal Financial Controls related to Financial Statements.
The Company's Internal Financial Controls are commensurate with the size, nature and operations
of the Company.

24. Transfer of amounts to Investor Education and ProtectionFund
There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection
Fund as at 31st March, 2020.

25. Statutory AUditors
MIs. Bagaria & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.113447W1W-100019) were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on os"
September, 2017 for a period of 5 years, subject to ratification at every Annual General Meeting.

However. as per Companies (Amendment) Act. 2017, ratification by members at AGM has been
omitted.

MIs. Bagaria & Co. LLP. Chartered Accountants have furnished a certificate of their eligibility and
consent under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder for the
FinEtncial Year '020-21.
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The Observations raised by Statutory Auditors in their Audit Report are as under:

The financial statements indicate that the Company's net worth has fully eroded and also the
Company's current liabilities exceeded its total assets. These events or conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in the said, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

However, the management is confident of reversing the losses in the coming years with the
committed financial support from the Promoters. Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. .

Management's reply:
The Report issued by the Statutory Auditors and Notes on Financial Statement referred to in the
Auditor's Report and their Observations therein are self-explanatory and do not call for any further
clarifications/com ments.

26. Fraud Reporting
No frauds were reported by the Auditors in their Report on the Financial Statements of the Company
under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

27. Secretarial Auditors
Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the Board has appointed MIs. Pradeep
Purwar& Associates, Practising Company Secretary, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial
year 2019-20. Your Company has provided all assistance and information to the Secretarial
Auditors for conducting their audit. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31St

March, 2020 is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure C to this Report.

e anagement s replies to the observations raise in the ecretarial AudiU~eport are as under:
Sr.

Observations Management's ReplyNo.
Considering the size and operations of the

1.(a) Non Compliance under Section 203 of the Act with Company, the Company Is unable to find a
respect to the appointment of Company Secretary. suitable candidate for appointment as

Company S~_9r~t5!ry~....
Non Compliance under Section 91 of the Act with Publication of advertisement of notice of

(b) respect to publication of notice of book closure in book closure in the newspaper was
the newspaper. 11DgJ~d_y~r:t~ntlymissed .out ~YJhf!.~()'!lp.~.~y.~_.~
Non Compliance under Rule 20 Companies ;

) Publication of advertisement of Notice of
(c) (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 of ! AGM in the newspaper was inadvertentlythe Act with respect to the publication of I missed out by the Company.advertisement of Notice of AGM in the newspaper.

Non-filing of a-Form INC- 22A (ACTIVE) as The Company is unable to find a suitable

(d) prescribed under Rule 25A of Companies candidate for appointment as Company

(Incorporation) Rules, 2014 as amended. Secretary and hence, e-forrn INC- 22A

~--.-- (ACTIVE) cannot be filed- ..-~--.---
Non Compliance of regulations 61 46 and 47 of I The Company will ensure compliance with2. SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 i LOOR Regulations in future.

. j The accumulated losses have been
3. .~~~?~~~~;~_~.:_~:..th~_~:mpany IS re:U~d b:I:~.J;~~~~~~:~ri~~~~;'~~r~:~~~:~~due to

...... . " .... __ .

28. Policies, Charters and Code of Conduct of the Company
During the year under review, the Company has reviewed and revised statutory pollcles, Charters
and Code of Conduct as required in terms of provisions of Companies Act, 2013, RBI Act, 1934 and
SEBI Act, 1992 and rules and regulations made thereunder as amended from time to time.
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29. Audit Committee
Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audit Committee of the Company
comprisedof the following members as on 31 st March 2020:

1. Mr. OmPrakash Agarwal (Chairperson) - Independent Director
2. Mr. Ashish D Jaipuria (Member) - Managing DIrector
3. Mr. Samir Sanghai (Member) - Independent Director

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

The Committee held 6 (Six) meetings during the financial year 2019-20 on 30th May, 2019, 09th
August, 2019, 12th September, 2019, 08111 November, 2019, 14th February, 2020 and 13th March,
2020

Att d f b t A dit C itt M fen ance 0 mem ersa u omm ee ee mgs
Attendance at the meetings held on

Name of the Member 30th May, 091h Aug. 12thSept, oath Nov. 14th Feb, 13th March,
2019 2019 2019 2019 2020 2020

Mr. OmPrakash Agarwal ,,- ,,- ,,- ,,- ,,- ,,-
.._- ._ ...... _

Mr. Ashish D. Jaipuria ,,- ,,- ,/ ~ ,,- ,,-
Mr. Samir Sanghai ,,- ,,- ,,- v" ./ ../

30. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Pursuant to Section 178( 1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
(NRC) shall consist of three or more Non-executive Directors out of which not less than one-half
shall be Independent Directors. Consequent to the resignation of Ms. Kirti Jaiouna, the Board of
Directors at their Meeting held on 13th March, 2020 re-constnuted the NRC as follows:

1. Mr. OmPrakash Agarwal (Chairman) - Independent Director
2. Mr. Samir Sanghai (Member) - Independent Director
3. Ms. Archana Jaipuria (Member) - Non-executive Director

During the year under review, the Committee held 2 (Two) meeting on 30lh May, 2019 and on 14u,
February, 2020. All the members of the committee were present at the meeting.

31. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee
Pursuant to Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee
comprised ofthe following members as on 31st March, 2020:

1. Mr. Samir Sanghai (Chairman) - Independent Director
2. Mr. OmPrakash Agarwal (Member) -Independent Director
3. Mr. Ashish D. Jaipuria (Member) - Managing Director

The Committee held 1 (One) meeting on 30lh May. 2019 and all the members of the committee were
present at the said meeting.

32. Vigil Mechanism
In terms of Section 177(9) and Section 177(10) of the Companies Act. 2013 read with the rules
made there under, the Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the
necessary vigil mechanism for Directors, employees and external stakeholders to approach the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company and to report genuine concerns about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct and provide
adequate safeguards against victimization of Whistle Blower who avails of such mechanism. None
of the Whistle Blowers have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

33. Investment Policy
The Board has framed the Investment Policy of the Company. in terms of the RBI Master Circular
ONBS (PO) CC No. 380/03.02.001/2014-15 dated 1s1 July, 2014, which includes criteria to classify
the investments into current and long term investments, grouping of quoted current investments for
tho purpose of valuation, valuation of unquotsd equity shares, preference shares. govemment
securities, units of mutual funds, commercial papers, long term investments. etc.
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34. Risk Management Policy
The Board of the Company has adopted the Risk Management Policy in order to assess, monitor
and manage risk throughout the Company.

Risk is an integral part of the Company's business, and sound risk management is critical to the
success of the organization.

35. Details of policy developed and implemented by the Company on its Corporate Social
Responsibility Initiatives
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 were not applicable to your Company during the financial
year 2019-20.

36. Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of Directors. The Company has put in place appropriate policy
on Directors' appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013, which has been disclosed in the "Annexure 0". which forms part of this
Report.

37. Directors' Responsibility Statement
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013:

(i) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31at March, 2020,
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departure;

(ii) that appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied oonsistently, and have
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year and of the profit of
the Company for that year;

(iii) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(lv) that the annual accounts have been prepared on a 'going concern' basis;

(v) that internal financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(vi) that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and
were adequate and operating effectively.

38. Maintenance of Cost Records
The provisions of maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company under the Companies (Cost Record and Audit) Rules, 2014.

39. DiSClosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act. 2013
The Company has Zero tolerance for Sexual harassment at Workplace. Appropriate reporting
mechanisms are in place for ensuring protection against sexual harassment and right to work with
dignity.

Internal Complaints Committee was not required to be constituted since the Company does not
have more than ten employees and no cases in the nature of sexual harassment were reportedto
Local Complaints Committee at any workplace of the Company during the financial year
2019-20.



Place: Mumbal
Date: 04th September, 2020

For and on behalf of Board ofDlrectors
of KIDUJA INDIA LIMITED

~~aIPuria ~a~U~
Managing DIrector Director

DIN: 00025537 DIN: 00025586
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40. Compliance with Secretarial Standards
The Company has generally complied with Secretarial standards l.e. 5S-1 and SS-2 relating to
"Meetings of the Board of Directors" and "General Meetings", respectively, specified by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India under Section 118 of the Companies Act, 2013.

41. Acknowledgement
Your Directors are happy to place on record their sincere appreciation to the various Central and
State Government Departments, Organizations and Agencies for the continued help and co-
operation extended by them. The Directors also gratefully acknowledge all stakeholders of the
Company viz. employees, members, customers, dealers, vendors, banks and other business
partners for their unstinted commitment and continued support and contributionto the Company.
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ANNEXURE A TO THE BOARD'S REPORT

The Statement of particulars of Employees of KlduJa India limited ("Company") as mentioned
under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014

I. Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Ratio of remuneration
of each Di rector to Percentage

Sr. Name of the Designation median remuneration increase in
No. Director/KMP of employees of the remuneration

company for the in FY 2019-20
"----- f---- - FY 2019·20

1 Mr. Ashish D. Jaipuria Chairman & NA NAManaging Director
2 Ms. Kirti D_ Jaipuria* Director NA NA
3 Ms. Archana Jaipuria Director NA NA
4 Mr. Samir S. Sanghai Independent Director NA NA
5 Mr.OmPrakashAQarwal Independent Director NA NA
6 Oarshan Kumar Jain Chief Financial NA 7.53%Officer
..Ms_ Kirti D. Jaipuria resigned as Director of the Company w.e.t. 02'lC1March.2020_

• The percentage increase In the median remuneration of employees In the financial year:

Sr. Name of the Percentage increase

No. Employee in remuneration
in FY 2019-20

1 Mr. Darshan Kumar Jain 07.53%
2 Mr. Sanjay Nawal 17.65%
3 Ms. Neeta Swve 17.65%--------- r---------------------- ----------
4 Mr_ Pramod Mohite 20-00%

• The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company:
There were 4 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 315tMarch. 2020.

• Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out If there are
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:
Not Applicable asno remuneration is drawn by any Director of the Company.

• Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:
It is hereby affirmed that theremuneration paid during the year is as per the Remuneration Policy
of the Company.



Place: Mumbai
Date: 04th September, 2020
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II. Statement pursuant to Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Details of Top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the name of every employee, for
the financial year ended March 31, 2020 who-

• Employed throughout the financial year and was in receipt of remuneration which, in the
a99r09ato, was not loss than Rs.10,200,OOO por annum:
Nil

• Employed for a part of the financial year and was in receipt of remuneration for any part of
that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than Rs. 8,50,000 per month:
Not Applicable as no employee was engaged for a part of the financial year.

• Employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in
that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, In the aggregate,
is in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director or Whole-time Director or Manager and
holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than 2% of the
equity shares of the Company:
Nil
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ANNEXURE BTO THE BOARD'S REPORT

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31S1March,2020
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1)

of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014J

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
- .... -.--~ .. _ .... .- ---~

CIN L72200MH 1985PLC038019
Registration Date 08/11/1985.- .. - .....-_ ....

Name of the Company KIDUJA INDIA LIMITED
Category Company Li'"!:l~edby Shares
Sub-Category of the C~f!lpany Indian Non-Government Company
Address of the 127-B. Mittal TOWer,
Registered office Nariman Point,
and contact details Mumbai - 400 021.

Telephone: 022- 40022100
Fax: 40022106

.._ ... .•. Email: kiduja.acco~nts@y~.hoo.com
Whether listed company Yes
Name, Address and Link Intime India Private Limited
Contact details of C-101, 247 Park,
Registrar and Transfer Agent LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West),

Mumbai - 400 083.
Telephone: 022-49186000
Fax: 022 - 49186060
Email: mt.helpd~sk@linkintime.co.in

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated:-

... · .'~' .-
51. Name and De5cription of NIC Code of the % to total turnover
No. Main Products I Services Product/Service of the Company
1. Non-Banking Fin~nciat Company 64990 -- ..- . -_ - ._---

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

~;~ ! Holding I
-'--"

me and address
CIN I GLN I Subsidiary I % ofShare$ Applicable Sectionf the Company Associate Held

None -_~._.... L. ...._ ... -- -- -
.. .-.- ... . -- .

IV. SHARE HOLDING PAITERN (Equity Share Capttal Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

n Category-wise Share Hol~tng: ----_---, ----- '". ..
j

No. of Shares held at the No. of Share5 held at the %beainninll of tha year ..... ---- end of the Y@~J.
"",,,,,,_,-, Change

i Category of Shareholders ~oof %of during! Oemet Physical Total TotalShar_ Demat Physical Total Total the yearShares____ w'o __

I _.. -'.0'_-
A. Premotera .........._.._--_._. -- -_- .__ -
(1) Indian

-
Individual I HUF 11,15,000 . 11,15,000 65.01 11,15.000 - 11,15,000 65.01 -

Central Govl. . " " " · " · · ·
._-- -.~. -~--"-- ....... _._-

State GoVl(s). . - . . · - · - ·

fIOOies Corp. - - - . · . - · ..
.. ....--~....~~--'-

._ - ..__ ......__ .. _.
BankE I FI - . · · ·_._._--_. ---'-
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Any other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (Al (1 ): 11,15,000 · 11,15,000 65.01 11,15,000 - 11,15,000 65.01 -

(2) Foreign

NRls - Illdividuals - - - - - - - - ..
....... ...,...._-

Other - Individuals - - - - - - - - -

Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
Banks I FI - - - - - - - - -
Any Other. ... - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (A)(2): - - - - - - - - -

Total Shareholding ofPromoters 11,15,000 - 11,15,000 65.01 11,15,000 - 11,15,000 65.01 -IAl = (A)(1)+(A)( 2)
e, Public: Shareholdlng

1. Institutions

Mutual Funds - · - - - - - - -

Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

Central Govt. - - - - - - - -
Stale Govt(s). - - - - - - - - -

."._" .' ....,.~ .-.-~

Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -

Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -

Fils - - - - - - - - -

Foreign Venture Capital funds - - - - - - - - --_._-_
Others (specify)

Sub"total (B}(1): - - - - - - - -----_._'-
2. Non Institutions

Bodies Corp. 10,882 200 11,082 0.65 7,354 200 7,554 0.44 (0.21)-- . .. -. --.-
Individuals

i) Individual Shareholders holt1ill!!
nominal share capital upto INR 1 1,68,933 1,58,900 3,27,833 19.11 1,76,186 1,52,500 3,28,686 19.17 0.06
lakh
ii) Individual Shareholders holding
nominal share capital in excess of 2,53,229 - 2,53,229 14.77 2,53,229 . 2,53,229 14.77 -
INR 11akh

. -----,.

others (specify)

i) Non-Resident (Non-Rep) 1,152 - 1,152 0.07 3,952 - 3,952 0.23 0.16...... -.-~."", ..-.
ii) Non-Resident (Rep) 6,179 · 6,179 0.36 6,179 - 6,179 0.36

.__ ._.-_.''''_.-.

iii) Trust - - - - - - - - -
IV) OCB - - - - ~ - - -

v) Clearing Members 525 - 525 0.03 400 - 400 0.02 {0.O1).-~-..~';'
-_. -- -__ .-

Sub-total (BX2); 4,40,900 1,59,100 6,00,000 34.9fl 4,47,300 1,b2,/OO 6,00,000 3H)9 -

Total Public Shareholdlng 4,40,!}OO 1,59,100 6,00,000 34_99 4,47,300 1,52,700 6,00,000 3499 -(B) = (B){1 }+(B)(2)
C_Share& held by - - - - - - - - -Custodlanfor GDRta & AORta
Grand Total (A+B+C) 15,55,900 1,09,100 17,15,000 100 15,62,300 1,52,700 17,15,000 100 -

-_ .. ,_........ ~.. __ ....- . '-"-"'~'.----' ...... -----

iI) Shareholding of Promoters:
Shareholdlng at the SharehOlding at the

beginning of the year &I'd of the year % change In
SI. Narneof % of total % ofSharas % of total % of Shares Shareholding
No. Shareholder No_of Shares Pledged I No. of Shares PledgedJ during th&

Shares of the encumbered Shares of tho ~ncumbered year
COmDanV to tOial shares ComDanv to total $harH

1 Ashish D. Jaipuria 11,15,000 65.01 - 11,15,000 65.01 - -
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Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change):
Share holding at the Cumulative Shareholdlng

81. Particulars
beginning of the year during the year

No. No. 01 I % of total shar1l$ No. of I % of total shares
Shares of the Company Shares of the Company

1 At the beginning of the year No Change during the year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters Shareholding
2 during tho voar spocifying tho reasons for incroaso/docroaso No Chango during tho year

(e.g. allotment! transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

3 At the end of the year No Change during the year

iii

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
'Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

r--"~r----~ Shareholding at the
beginning of the

Cumulative
Shareholding

durlnc the yearear81.
No.

Shareholder's Nama % of total
No" of Shares

shares of the
Company

0/0 of total
No. of Shares

shares of the
Company

-,-~ ~Hitesh RamJi Javeri
AI the beginning of the year 51,849 3"02 51849 .l.Q?_

- -

51.849 3.02

49,237 2.87

- -

49,237 2.87

46.518 2.71
. .

46,518
---:--

2.71
..... _. __ ••• r

43050 2.51
. .

4:m en ;,I.M

22,077 1.29
- -

22 077 1.29

15,51!3 0.90._- -----,._,--

1 Date wise Increase I Decreest'! In Pr("lm("lle~ ShAraholrling during the yAAr specifying
the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment I transfer I bonus! sweat eQuity elc):
At the End of the year 51,849 3.02

AI the beginning of the year 49237 2.87
2 Date wise Increase f Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the year specifying

the reasons for increasel decrease (e.g. allotment I transfer I bonusl sweat equily etc):
49,237 2.87.. At the End of the year _. - -- _.--_

. Ms. Gaytrl Babulal Agarwal ~ ~~~+- __ -+__ ~--+~~~+-~~~--1
I At the beainnlna of the year

3 t Date wise Increase I Decrease In Promoters Shareholdlng during the year specifYingj _the reasons for increase f decrease (e.g. allotment I transfer I bonusl sWQat equity etc):
AI the End of the year

2.7146518

46518 2.71

Mr. Babulal A!Jarwal
At the beginning of the year 43050 2.51

4 Date wise Increase I Decrease In Promoters Shareholding during ths year specifying
the reasons for increase' decrease {e.g. allotment/ transfer I bonus/ sweat eQuity etc}:
At the End of Ihe year 43,050 2,51

l--':'M.!:"s:!!.H.!!a",-rs""h.!!a"-,H,-,t!!:'te"-,s",h~J""aC!.ve,,,,n,,-·~~~~~~~_. __ ._ ....
At the beginning of the year 1.2922,077

5 I Date wise Increase I Decrease in PromoterS SharehOldlng during the year specifying
, the reasons for increase I decrease (e.g. allotmenl! transfer' bonus/ sweat equitY ale):

At the End of the year 22,077 1.29
Mr, PitamberdasBhasharamPahula

f-""-,::A::..tt=,-·h",·e·_:·"b:.::e.a=.Qiin:.:..;n.:.:_in;.g_::goc:_f""th.:,::e'-'YL..:4e",So..f._-...-_-.,--:- =-- .. --.----.-.,.----=-:----:--:--::---:--:--:-:~~-~-- ..-:-:-c~--~-- _!_5_2_!_8_
6 Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the year specifying

thl'! rsasons for incraase I decrease (e.ll. allotment I transfer I bonusl sweat eQuity etc):

0.00

At the End of the year
... "Mr. MitenBhogilaJChhadva - . --

15518 0.90 15,518 0.90

At the beginning of the year _..__ .. _._. ___:I?,!_QQ. __ -=O.,-,-.7_:4_-+-_:1-=2,-,7-=O..::.O-+~-=O:..:..7:_4:__-!
7 Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the year specifying

the reasonS for increase I decrease (e.g. allotmerlt_!_/-"tra",n",s~fe~r...!./-"b,-"o:!!nu""s",-l-"swe"""""at,,-,:8Q='u",litv~e-",tc"")::'--If--:-c::-:=---=-=-+----,::--=-:-~+-_:_::_=- ::-::--I-~-:::--=c ..
At the End ofttleyea'r- .... .. . .. . 12700 0.74 12.700 0.74
MrYalin Prakash Shah HUF
At the beQinnino of the year 12280 0.72 12.280 0.72

8 Date wise Increase f Decrease in Promoters SharahOldillg dUring tM year specifying
the reasons for increase I decrease (e.g. allotment {transfer / bonusl sweat equitv etc):

12.2E!O..... 0.7212280 0.72At the End ofthe year. _, ,_.

)-!!M::::s::_. .:::S:!..!ha~k:!!:u=:!.:n:=Ia::!:la::....:::S.::;u:..::res:::::.::.h.::S=:!.:h::::a:..:.h~~~.. -~~~~~~~~~!---;:-=;==--+-~=-=-=---t--;::-=:=-.-t-~-;;-;;;;;: ...._.....
At the begin~~_!)J.!!!!l.y~r .. , .. ' ~_.__ .~_-=-:_-:--:-::----,--:-----",-- __ ---,::-:- __ t----"9",,8:..;;.7..::.5_-t-_O=.~58.. ~~:.:...7,..,5--+__ -=0.....5:::;8_--1

9 Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the year specifying -0.01 -100 -0.01
the ~.~;>{)ns for increase , decrElas~_tftg_. allotment I transfer I bonusl sweat equity etc): -100 . - . -. -0-."5=----7
At the End of the year .. . .. 9 775 0.57 9,775 ,. =.... ,", Mr: Jhabarmal Choudhary - ..~ -----+-~~-r--~~~
At t~ baqinnim:! of the vElar __.._. ..._. -t-._:6:.L1.:..;7'-'4'---!~_;O::..:;.=-36=___+--=6-'-1'-'-7-'4__1I__--=-O'-=.3'-"6~_,

10 Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the year specifying
r-!:~ere~c?!l§_fQr increase I decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer f bonusl sweat equi~_~!~):_._ •

At the End ofthe year 5174I
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are 0 mgo lrec ors an ey anag_ena ersonne;
Shareholding at the ClKIlulative Shareholdlng

For Each of tha beginnill! of the year durin!:i the year

Directors and KMP No. of % of total No. of % of total
sha~s of the !lhare9 of theShares

Coml)anv Shares
Company

1. Ashish D. Jaipuria
At the beginning of tba year 1115000 65.01 1115000 65.01
Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for increasel decrease - - - -
(B.~. allotment I transfer I bonus I sweat equity etc): ._._._._- ......... _. .... _..._- - ' .. , .. . ...... ----, ..~-...~.

At the end of the year 11,15,000 65.01 11,15,000 65.01

V. INOEBTEONESS:lndebtedness of the Company Including Interest outstanding I accrued but
not due forpayment

(Rs. In Thousands)
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total

excludina deposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginnin~ of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 187508.43 287653.59 - 4,75162.02
Ii) Interest due but notJl?id - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Tolal_(j'Hi+iiil 187508.43 287.653.59 - 475162.02
Chango In Indebtedness durlnll_the flnanclal year
Addition - 1,47,176.41 - 1 47176.41
Reduction (1,87,508.43) - - (1,87508.431-
Net Change (1,81508.43) 1,47176.41 . (40332.02)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount - 4.34830.00 - 4::14 fl30.00
ii) Inlerest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due . - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) - 434830.00 - 4. 34830.00

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager
The Company has not paid any remuneration to the Managing Director during the Financial Year
ended 31sMarch, 2020 and hence disclosure under this head is not applicable to the Company.

B. Remuneration to other Directors
The Company has not paid any remuneration to any of the Directors during the Financial Year
ended 31stMarch, 2020 and hence disclosure under this head is not applicable to the Company.

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD I WTD I MANAGER
{Rs. In Thousandsl

SI. Key Managerial Personnel

No.
Particulars of Remuneration

CEO C.S Mr. Darshan Kumar
TolalJain CFO ~~---"..

Gross Salary
Salary as per section 17(1) of the - - 631 631Income Tax Act, 1961

1 Value of Perquisites u{s 17(2)
InoomeTaxAct 1961 - - - -
Profits in lieu of Salary u{s 17(3)

- - - -of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - - - -
3 Sweat EQuity - - - -

Commission - -
4 - as % of _profit - - - .

- ot~rs, specify... .. - - - -
5 Others please specify - - . -

Total - - 631 631
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VII. PENALTIES I PUNISHMENT I COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

\ Details of Penalty I
Section of troe Brief I Punishment I

Companies Act Description I Compounding___ _,_ --'- ~,L fees imposed

Type
Authority

[RD/NCLTf
COURT]

Appeal maria,
if any (givE! Details)

None

~--===T~ NN.onon' _ee.' ,._,_,j-l
- - Pen.a1ty I
_ - Punishment

-_C;:_Q!!)pounding_

Place: Mumbai
Date: 04th Septembert 2020

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of KIDUJA INDIA LIMITED

~

ASh~~~ Jalpurla
Managing Director

DIN: 00025537

Archana Jaipuria
Director

DIN: 00025586
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us Pradeep Purwar & Associates
Company Secretaries

FormNo.MR-3
SECRETAlUALAUDIT REPORT

For the Financial Year ended 31stMarch, 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Rule NO.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Kiduja India Limited,
127-B,Mittal Tower, Nariman Point,
Mumbai 400021.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Kiduja India Limited (hereinafter called "the
Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis

.for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31stMarch, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, ~020 according to the
provisions of:

(0 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,
2018;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (,SEBI Act'):- .

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Ad and dealing with client;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

.d) The Securities and Exchange Hoard of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(vi) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

Page 1?f3.-
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PraJeep Purwar & Associates
Company Secretaries

(vii) Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998;

(viii) Non-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Provisions of the following Act, Regulations and Guidelines were not attracted to the Company
under the financial year under report.- .

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Hoard of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009;

(iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the niles and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

.We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) .Secretarial Staudanls issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of india.
(ii) Listing Agreement with BSE Limited

During the period under review the Company has complied with. the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned above, to the extent applicable, except the
fullowing: .

Sr. Applicable Law
No.

Observation

1 Companies Act,
2013 and Rules
made thereunder

(a) Nun compliance under Section 91 of the Act with respect
to publication of notice of book closure in the newspaper.

(b) Nun Compliance under Section 203 of the Act with
respect to the appointment of Company Secretarij.

(c) Non Compliance under Rule 2() Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2U14 of the Act
with respect to Lhe publication of advertisement of Notice
.uJAGM in the newspaper.

(d) Non-filing of e-Form INC- 22A (ACi1vE) as prescribed
under Rule 25A of Companies (Incorporation) Rules,
2U14 as amended.

2 SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015

(a) Requlation 6 - NUH Compliance with respect to
appointment of Qualified Company Secrelary as the
Compliance Officer.

In this reqard, the Company has received notice from
ESE Limited dated 11th August, 2019; 14th November,
2019; 12111 February, 2020 and 4th August, 2020 for the
quarter ended June 2019; September, 2019; December
2019 and March, 2020 respectively to pay fines for
continued nun-compliance under the said regulations.

----------------------------------------
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Pradeep Purwar & Associates
Company Secretaries

(b) Regulation 46 - Non Compliance with respect to
maintaining a functional website containing basic
information about the Company and information
prescribed in Regulation 46(2).

(c) Regulation 47 - Non Compliance with respect to
publication of audited and unaudited financial results in
the newspaper.

(d) Regulation 47 - Non Compliance with respect to
publication of prior intimation of Board Meeting where
financial results are discussed in the newspaper.

Reserve Bank
India Act, 1934

of Net Owned Fund of the Company is reduced below Rs. 2 Crore3

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
halance of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

Adequate notice is generally given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days inadvance, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and

.for meaningful participation at the meeting.
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of:
(0 Public I Rights / Preferential issue of shares / debenturesZaweat equity;
(ii) .Redemption! buy-back of securities;·
(iii) Major decisions taken by the Members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies Act,

2013;
(iv) Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction etc.
(v) Foreign technical collaborations.

Place: Thane
Date: 4u1 September, 2020

For Pradeep Purwar & Associates
Company Secretaries

C/2:Pv trn Q ),JZdl.
P .....deep KUD18r Purwar
Proprietor
C.P. No. 5918
UDIN:Fo05769Booo662425

Page 3 ofg



20

ANNEXURE D TO THE BOARD'S REPORT

Remuneration Polley for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees

1. Background
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules made thereunder defines the role of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee to include, inter alia amongst others, the following:
);.> To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior

management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their
appolntment and removal

.,. To specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and
individual directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee or by an independent external agency and to review its implementation and compliance
thereof

jo;. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.

2. Policy Objectives
This Policy is framed to define the basic principles and procedure of nomination and determination of
remuneration of all the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees of the Company. It is
further intended to ensure that the Company is able to attract, develop and retain high-performing
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees and that their remuneration is aligned with
the Company's business strategies, values and goals.

This Policy shall be applicable upon all the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management
Personnel and other employees of the Company as prescribed.

3. Definitions
a) "Act" means the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, including, any modifications,

amendments or re-enactment thereof.
b) MAudit Committee" means the Audit Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the

Company in accordance with Section 177 of the Act.
c) "Board of Directors" or "Board" means the collective body of the Board of Directors of the Company.
d) "Committee" means the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted

or reconstituted by the Board, in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

e) "Company" means Kiduja India Limited.
f) "Director" means a Director appointed to the Board of a Company.
g) "Independent Director" means a Director referred under provisions of Section 149 of the Companies

Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder.
h) "Key Managerial Personnel" means a Key Managerial Personnel as defined in the Act.
i) "Manager" means an individual, who subject to the superintendence, control and direction of the

Board. has the management ot the whole or SUbstantially me wnoie of me affairs of a Company, ana
includes a Director or any other person occupying the position of a manager, by whatever name
called. whether a contract of service or not.

j) "Policy" means this Nomination and Remuneration Policy
k) "Relative" means a relative as defined in the Act.
I) "Senior Management" shall derive its meaning from the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (hereinafter referred to as the
"Listing Regulations"). In general, it shall mean officers/personnel of the listed entity who are
members of its core management team excluding board of Directors and normally this shall
comprise all members of management one level below the chief executive officer/managing
director/whole time director/manager (including chief executive officer/manager, in case they are not
part of the board) and shall specifically include company secretary and chief financial officer.
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4. Policy
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall ensure that:
(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate

Directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;
(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance

benchmarks; and
(c) remuneration to Directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance

between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of the company and its goals

Identification process of persons qualified to become Directors and who may be appOinted In
senior management
The Committee shall identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed
in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down in the Act and the Listing Regulations.
Subsequently, they shall recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and carryout the
evaluation of every Director's performance in accordance with Section 178(2) of the Act read with the
Rules framed thereunder.

Criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director
? Qualifications, positive attributes of a Director:

The supreme executive authority controlling the management and affairs of a company vests in the
team of Directors of the company, collectively known as its Board of Directors. Therefore,
considering the pivotal role of the Directors, it is important to define the required qualifications and
positive attributes of a person appointed as a Director:

1. The person should not be disqualified pursuant to Section 164 of the Act, read with the Rules made
thereunder.

2. The Company shall consider the balance of skills, experience, expertise appropriate to the
requirements of the businesses of the Company, etc. of persons for appointment as Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel. The need of the hour also requires such person to possess requisite
business literacy/skill.

3. The person should be open to learning and possess strong ethical values and requisite
communication skills to execute his or her task as a Director.

4. A Director should have the ability to respect alternative Viewpoints.
The Board has not established specific minimum age, education. years' of business experience or
specific types of skills for Board members. but, in general, expects a candidate to have extensive
experience and proven record of professional success, leadership and the highest level of personal
and professional ethics. integrity and values.
The aforesaid criteria and attributes are not exhaustive principles and the Committee and Board can
look beyond the aforesaid guidelines, to take the best decisions in the interest of the Company.

);;- Additional Qualifications for a Director appointed as a member of the Audit committee:
In addition to the above mentioned attributes, a Director proposed to be appointed as a member of
the Audit Committee should possess ability to read and understand the financial statements.

y Additional Criteria/Qualifications for a person proposed to be appointed as a Managing
Director, Whole-time Director or Manager:
In addition to the aforesaid criteria, the Company shall also adhere to the provisions of Section 196
of the Act, read with the Rules made thereunder and Schedule V of the Act, alongwith the relevant
provisions of the Listing Regulations, if any.

>- Criteria of Independence for independent Directors:
The Company shall adhere to the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made thereunder alongwith Regulation 16 of Listing Regulations for determination of
Independence for Independent Director

> Limits on number of Directorships:
The number of Directorships of the proposed appointee and the present Directors, should be within
the prescnoeo limits of Section 165 of the Act, read with Rules made thereunder, including any
statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment thereof.
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Criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes of persons who may be appointed in
senior management
The Company shall consider the balance of skills, experience. expertise appropriate to the
requirements of the businesses of the Company, etc. of persons for appointment at Senior
Management levels.

Procedure of appointment:
The appointment of the Directors, Manager, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Personnel shall be governed by this Policy alongwith the Articles of Association, relevant provisions of
the Act, read with the Rules and Schedules forming part thereto and the provisions of the Listing
Regulations.

Tenure:
" Independent Directors

The maximum tenure of independent directors shall be in accordance with the provisions of Section
149 (10) afthe Companies Act, 2013.

);- Executive Directors
Pursuant to Section 196 of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder, the reappointment of the
Managing Director. Whole-time Director or manager. shall be for a term not exceeding five (5) years
at a time.Provided that no re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of
the term.

);> Retirement
The Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the
applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the
discretion to retain the Director, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel in the
same positionl remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, in the interest of
the Company.

Removal:
The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, Key
Managerial Personnel or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions of this Policy, the
Articles of Association. Companies Act. 2013. read with the Rules made thereunder. the Listing
Regulations, and any other applicable Law in force. The tenure of the Managing Director and the
Executive Director can be terminated by either party by giving Thirty (30) days' notice in writing and
shall be subject to the approval of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of
Directors.

Criteria for determining remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management Personnel.
j;r Remuneration to the Non·Executive Directors
1. All Non-Executive Directors including the Independent Directors are entitled to receive remuneration

by way of sitting fees for each meeting of the Board or Committee of the Board (Audit Committee &
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee). The sitting fees is determined and revised by the
Board and is subjected to the threshold limit prescribed in Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
made thereunder, and any other applicable law(s) in force.

2. Further, they may receive such other remuneration as permissible under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder and/or the provisions of the Listing
Regulations.
Provided that the requirement of obtaining prior approval of shareholders in general meeting shall
not apply to payment of sitting fees to non-executive directors, if made within the limits prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 for payment of sitting fees without approval of the Central
Government.
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}r Remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel, Manager,
and the Executive Directors including Whole-time Director and Managing Director.

1. The remuneration of the Managing Director and Whole-time Director is determined by the Board of
Directors. statutory limits laid in the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules and Schedules
forming part thereto and the approval of the shareholders and/or Central Government, wherever
required.

2. The remuneration shall be broadly divided into the following components;
a. The Fixed Components ..This shall broadly encompass: Salary, allowances, perquisites, retirement

benefits, etc.
b. The Variable Components- Performance based promotion and bonus shall be primarily included

hereto.
3. The remuneration package of the employees will comprise of the aforesaid two components.

However, the same shall also depend upon various factors including: their grade, industry
benchmark, overall business performance. Further, in determining the Director's remuneration, their
performance evaluation as duly carried out by the Board and/or Independent Directors, shall also be
given due weightage.

4. Any annual increase in the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Managerial Personnel shall be at the sole discretion of the Board, based on the recommendation of
the Committee and subject to such statutory approvals, if any.

5. Disclosures
Pursuant to the provistons of section 178(4) of the Act read section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the policy shall be placed on the website of the company and the salient features of the policy and
changes therein, if any, along With the web address of the policy, if any, shall be disclosed in the
Board's report.

6. Amendments In the Policy
a. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall review and amend this Policy as and when

required, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors.
b. Any subsequent amendment I modification in the applicable laws in this regard shall automatically

apply to this Policy.

****.***************
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Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

. t. -I

To the Members of
Kiduja India limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kiduja India Limited ("the Company"),
which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards (/lInd AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profits (including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasls
for our audit opinion on the financial statements. ~.

Material uncertainty related to Going Concern

We draw your attention to the fact that the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on
the principles of a going concern basis, which contemplated the realization of assets and the satisfaction of
liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has been incurring losses for the past few years
and its net worth has been fully eroded. Also, the Company's financial liabilities exceeded its financial assets
as on March 31, 2020. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. However, in view of comfort
received from the promoters to the effect that they will be continuing to provide financial support to the
Company, accordingly these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. (Refer note
no. 26 to the financial statements)

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significant in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
material uncertainty related to going concern section, we have determined that there are no key audit
matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor'S report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The Other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to the
Board report and Corporate Governance report but does not include the financial statement and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial.statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial posltlon, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAswill always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We are also: .

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstalements in the financial statements that individually or in
aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. we consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the flnanclal statements.



We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of .the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Pursuant to the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (lithe Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure "An a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books and records.

(e) The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Account) Rules,
2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representation received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on records by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2020 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure "B".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

During the year, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors.
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Vinay Somani

(h) With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's report in accordance with the rule
11of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. There were no pending litigations which would impact the financial position of the

Company.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses,

iii. There is no amount required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For Bagaria & CO LlP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. -
113447W!W-10OO19

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 3D, 2020



Annexure NAil referred to in {{Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements" section of our
report to the members of Kiduja India Umited of even date:

. ,

i. The Company does not have any Property, Plant & Equipment (Fixed assets). Therefore, the
provision of clause 3(i) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

ii. The Company does not held any inventory during the year. Therefore. the provisions of clause 3(ii)
of the order are not applicable to the Company.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not granted any loans.
secured or unsecured. to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provision of section 185 and
186 except sub section (1) of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon. In respect of
section 186(1), there were no investment made through not more than two layers of investment
companies.

v, No deposits have been accepted by the Company within the meaning of directives issued by
Reserve Bank of India and Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules
framed thereunder.

vi. As informed, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act in respect of services/activities carried out by the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, custom duty. goods and
service tax, and other material statutory dues during the year with the appropriate authorities.
No undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues as at the last day of
the financial year for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, goods
and service tax and duty of customs which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, we
are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The
Company has not taken any loan from government or debenture holders durin~ tile year in earlier
years.

ix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the has not taken
any term loans during the year. The Company has not raised any money by way of Initial public
offer or further public offer (Including debt instrument) during the year or in the recent past.

X. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by or on the
Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of such case by the management. ~
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For Balaria & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

..
xi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

books and records of the Company, the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during
the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xi) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Act and all the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable Accounting Standard (Refer Note 21 to the financial statements).

xlv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year or in the recent past.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3{xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions prescribed under Section 192 of the Act with directors or persons connected
with them during the year.

xvi. The Company is registered under section 4S-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2020



Report on the Internal financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Act

Annexure "8" referred to in "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" section of our
report to the members of The Oriental Aromatics Umited of even date:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Kiduja India Limited
(lithe Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (leAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.
as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued
by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

e Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.



Place: Mumbai
Date: June 3D, 2020

For Bagaria & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration No. - ~

l~W~~~(~~
Vinay Somani '<i:$9,';..:;J
Partner ~~~I:I.'J\)

Membership No. 143503
UDIN:- 20143503AAAAGQ1125

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls OVer Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the entity are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management; (3) and provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the entity's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls OVer Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, broadly in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2020; based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential Component of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.



17.94 17.94

92.56
405,750.76

24.84

1JI"I'Jr' .

KIDUJA INDIA UNITED
BAlANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020

PARTICULARS
Note
No.

As at
311Mar/2020
(Rs. in '000)

As at
31JMarl2019
(Rs. in '000)

As at
01/Aprl2018
(Rs. in '000)

ASSETS:
Financial Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Other Financial Assets
Total Assets

2
3
4

51.84 71.24

69.78 89.18 405,868.16

LlABlUnES & EQUITY:
Financial Liabilities:
Payables
Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises
Oi) total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises

5

542.64 386.60 125,362.09

434,830.00 475,162.02 917,782.25

1,020.67 822.62 739.83
27.64 3,318.71 2,811.91

436A~3L, .. 479.689Jl~ ..... ta461,696.07

17,150.00 17,150.00 17,150.00
(453,501 .17) (496,750.7D (657,977.91 )
{436,351.17l (4791600. T!J. ~640,827.91l

69.78 89.18 4051868.16

Borrowings 6

Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions
Other Non-Financial Liabilities

Total Liabilities

7
B

Equity:
Equity Share Capital
Other Equity

Total Equity

9
10

Total Liabilities and Equity

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes Forming
Integral Part afthe Rnancial Statements

1 - 31

AS PER OUR ATIACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE

For BAGARtA & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

~

r Registration NO.113.44.7.W I W-1 00019

t-I1 () ji~
l \fpV '."..', ~<"

VlNAYSOMANI ~.:~.•.;.'~:.( :·"i.;::;BA\ ~
Partner \... ' . .:::::
Membel'.ihip No.143503"·~· .• ~ ~.-•.-.~.,.~~~-~~~:~.~.~.:-..... ,\ \}

Mumbai 30th June, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Managing Director Director
DIN:00025537 DIN:00025586

Chief Financial
Otncer



KIDUJA INDIA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROfiT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

6.63

PARTICULARS
Note
No.

Year ended
31.Mar.2020
(Rs. in 'ODD)

Year ended
31·Mar·2019
(Rs. in '000)

REVENUE:
Revenue from Operations
- Net gain on fair value changes
Other Income

11
12

Total Revenue

EXPENSES:
Finance Costs
Employee Benefits Expense
Other Expenses

13
14
15

1,844.02
2,425.18

Total Expenses 4,269.19

Profit I (Loss) Before Tax and Excel)tlonal Hems (4,269.19)

Exceptional items 24 47,508.43

Profrt Before Tax 43,239.24

Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Prior years' tax adjustments

16

(10.37)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 43,249.61

Other Comprehensive Income

Total C.ompr.ehenslv.e.lncome.fDr. the. Year. 43,249.61

Earnings per Equity Share (Face Value RS.10 Per Share)
Basic and Diluted [before exceptional items]
Basic and Diluted [after exceptional items]

18
(2.48)
25.22

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes Forming
Integral Part of the Financial Statements

1- 31

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE

206,688.80
1.42

206,690.22

41,895.95
1,560.22
2,000.28

45,456.45

161,233.77

161,233.77

161,227.14

16t,227:.1.4.

For and on behalf of the Board of Director5

94.01
94.01

~M~~~'~,
A.. D. JAIPURIA A. A. JAIPURIA D. K. JAIN

Managing Director Director Chief Financia
DIN:00025537 DIN:00025586 Officer

Mumbai: 30th June, 2020



K1DUJA INDIA UMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Year ended
31-Mar-2019
(Rs. in '000)

No.

7,176.41 (442,620.23)
~41,895.95~

7,176.41 (484,516.18)

(19.40) (21.33)

71.24 92.56

51:84 71.24

29.03 29.97
22.81 41.27
51.84 71.24

1 - 31

Note Year ended
31-Mar-2020
(Rs. in '000)

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax

Adjusted for:
Finance Cost
Fair Valuation of Financial Assets - Unrealised
Writeback of liability no longer payable

Operating. Profit. before WoFking.Capital. changes.
Adjusted for:

(Increase) I Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
Increase I (Decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase J (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities

Cash Used In Operations
Direcl Taxes Paid I {Refund)
Net Cash Flow Used In Operating Activities

43,239.24

(47,508.43)

(4,269.19)

156.04
(3,093.02)

(7,206.18)
(11t.37)

(7,195.81)

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Sale of Investments
Purchase of Investments

Net Cash· -Flew· Fr-om. hwesting- AetWities

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borrowings/(Repayment) of Borrowings (net)
Interest Paid

Net Cash Flow From I (Used in) Financing Activities

Net Increase I (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents

cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)

Cash & Cash Equivalents Includes:
a) Cash on Hand
b) Balance with Banks

Significant Accounting PoliCies aM Other Notes fonning
Integral Part of the Financial Statements

161,233.77

41,895.95
(161,963.23)

41,1-66.49

6.90
(124,975.48)

589.60

(83,212.50)
6.63

(83,219.13)

709,663.99
(1411950.00)
5tW, 713-.98·

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Fu.-and un behalf of the Board of OtrectorsFa.-BAGARIA & CO. UP
Chartered Accountants

Finn Re9ist();ion NO'11.344 '. 0019
~~·&-fo
r,;rf:' ......({0 \~J,J, ~rIU1'-f~:JB:-\ :

V1NAY SOMANI ~~.~~\.... ff
Partner ";;;'>:: .:~;';-;:: ,··.:5~~
Membership No.143503 ..,;;:~~

Mumbai: 30th June, 2020

.~ M~ ~"'-- -d.,
A. D. JAIPURIA A. A. JAIPURIA D. K. JAIJ

Managing Director
DIN:00025537

Director
DIN:00025586

Chief Financial
Officer
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K1DUJA INDIA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Stablments for tile year ended March 31, 2020

Note No. 1

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Kiduja India Umited ie. a public limited company incorporatBd under Ihe Companies Act. 1956. The Equity Shares of 1he CompiMlY alii listed on Bombay
Stock Exchange (BSE). The Company i5 primarily engaged in business of Investments and dealing in Shares and Securities. The Company is registered as
a Non &Inking Financial Company (NBFC).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) StatlmMtnt: of Complla~ ilnd Basis or Pn!pafilltlon iIInd Presentation of Flnanclilll Sta1I!Inents
These standalone Dr separate financlal statements of !he Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (''the Act"), in conformity with Ills
accounting principles generally accepted in India and o1her provision of the Act.

The Company's financial statements up to and for the year ended 31st March 2019 were prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India (IGAAP) under !he historic cost conversion as going concern on accrual basis, unless otherwise stated, in accordance with provisions of
Companies Act, 2013, !he Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with nule 7 of the Companies
(Acoounts) Rules as amended.

The accounting policies are applied COISatelrtly to all the periods presan1ed in the financial statements. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss
are prepared and p~ in accordance with !he format prescribed in the Divisicn III to Schedule 111to the Act applicable for Non Banking Finance
Companies (NBFC).

(b) Functional and Presentallon currency
The financial statements are presented in INR, !he functional currency of the Company and its SUbsidiaries. All amounts di$Closed in the financial
s1Bt.emenl:sand notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherYlise slated.

(c) Basis of Measurement
The finanCial statements of the Company are prepared on the Accrual basis of eccounting and Historical cost convention except fO!" the following materiat
items that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:
(i) Cerlain Financial AssaIs and Liabilities are measured at Fair Value (Refer Nate No. (h) and (i) beloW)

(d) Use of E.timate& and Judgements
The preparation of the financial statements requires the Management to make judgments. estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities. disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the elate of the financial statement$ and the report.ed amounts of revenue and eXPenses during
the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in the financial statamen1s is made relying on these
estimates. The estimates and judgernen1s used in the preparation of 1he financial statements are continuously evaluated by the management and are based
on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the management believes to be reasonable
under the existing circumstances. Actual results may differ from those estimates. My revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in
current and future periods.

(e) Property, Plant: and equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impainnent lossee, if any.
The· cast of an i1Dm of property, plant and ~ipment compJise6 it& pu~ price, including import. duti96 and IlOIHlIfunda~· purch_ tal!8&, after
deducting tnide discounts and rebates, any directly attributab19 costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismarrtling and removing 1he item anCSrestoring the item anc! restoring the site on 1M1ich it is located.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of profit: and Loss.

(f) Intanaibla Assets
Intangible assets are carried at CMt 18t'I!'l; any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

(a) Depreciation and AmortisatiOn
(I) Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation has been provided on Writlen Down Value basis and in accordance with. method and useful life prescribed in Schedule lito the Companies
Act, 2013. The residual values, usefulliv8s and method of depreciation of property, ~nt and equipment is reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriale.

(il) Intangible As5ef$
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Finite-life intangible assets are arnortiMod on a straight-line basts over the
period of their expected useful lives. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for finite life intangible assets is reviewed at each financial year
.. nd and -adjtJsted ~y, if appropria., FOI' indsiinila·.Iife inl:mgible ~ Ih8 IISS85SIT18fIt of indefinite. Iif& is. nMMed annu:Jlly to dell!!rmine.
wh..th .... it contin ...... if not, it is; impaired or enang<><!pr=pediv<oIy ba"i .. r~ __ .

(11)Financial Assets - initial RecognlUon:
Financial Assets are recognised when the Company becomes ill pilrty 1xl the conlr.Ictual provieioos of the inslrumenls.

Initial Recognition and Measurement - Financial Assets and Flnanclal lIabilllIes
AM Financiill nRls and fil'lill1c:iaJlliabilities are initially mea..ured at fair value. Transaction costs that are dinectly attributable to the acquisition or ;,....ue of
financial aS681s and financial liabilities (other than financial asse1s and financial liabilities at fair value through profit: or loss and ancillary costs related to
borrowing$) are added 10 w·<h!duoted from the fair·vaIue of the·flmIhCiaI asse1s:!Ir IInariclaIliabililies; as sPJ'ropriIIte; on·lnitial reotIgnition, TllInaection·C06l$
dirndly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financialliabilitiea at fair value through profit or 1088are recognised immediately in the Statement
of profit and Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets
The company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized C09t, fair value through Other Cornpffih_ive Income ("FVTOCI') or ralr
valua1hrough profit or lon ('FVTPL') on the basis offoUDWing;

(~l the entity's business model for managing tile financial asae1B and
(b) !he oontrar;:b.llil,_,h flow charaet...ri®w l;iftho 'financial aosset



Amortiaed Coat
A financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost if baCh of !he foIIcMIing conditions are met
(i) the financial asset is hek! within a busr.es& model whose objective is In hold financial assets in ort:Jeoc to =IIect c:ontractu..l cash fIowsj
and
(ii) the contractual te!'Im; of the financial asset ~ rise on epecifiad dates to cash ftooNs !hat are aoIeIy payments of pmeipal and in1&rest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Fatr Value Through Other Comprehenstve Ineome (Moen:
A financial asaet is claasified and measured at FVTOCI if baCh of !he following conditions are met:

(i) Itle financial ass« is held wiItlin a business model whose objective is achieVed by bo1t\ eoIIec1ing contractual cash flaws and selling financial assets: and
(ii) the conIractuai terms of !he fillilflCiBl iIS5et give rise tTl specified dates to cash fIuNs 1flgt are solely payments of principal and inhtl1l!it nn thA prind~1
amount OUIsIandlng.

Fair VakHt Through Profit or Lon (FVTPL):
A financial BSset is classified and measured at FVTPL unless it is meagured at amortized CMt or at FVTOCI.
All recognized financial assets are subsequenHy mea8ured in !heir entirety at either amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classificalicn of the
financial aS581!;.

EqUity Instruments:
Considering the entity's business medal for managing eqUty instruments: the investments In eqUity shares have been reoognised at fair value as on data of
balance 9hget. Fair value movements are recognieed in the other compr8henai118 income (OCI).
DIvidendS 01'1 these Investments In equity InSIrUments are recognISed in Statement of profit and Loss when the Company's right In receive the dividends IS

fl6tabliiohed, it if. probable that the economic ben8fitr. a660Ciated with the diVidend will now to the entity, the dividend tloeIs not represent a recovery of part of
C06t of the investn'lent and the amount of dividend can be ~ed ~. Dividends ~ in StalBment of Profit and Loss are included in the
·Other income' line item.

Impairment
The Canp9ny r(lt)t)!1niw<> a loss ~~~ for Expected Credit LOS68S(ECl) on manciaI assets that are measured at amcrtised 005t and at FVOCI. lh9
aedit loss 18 dI!fer8nc6 betweeI1 aI eontractuaI cash flows that am due to an entity in accQ! dallCe with the contract and all the cash flfJW5 that the enIity
e)(pecls to receive (i.e. aI cash shcrtfaIIs), ~ at the original effective irrter~ rate. This is assessed on an individual or collective basis afteI'
considering alll'888Cn8bie and supportebIe including that which ill forward looking

The Company's leens and trado nx>eivabkxi or contract revenue I"C08iYabtes de nat ccnlBin !il;gnfficant financing component and 1088 allowBnce on trade
~b~ is; /T1IIaI;Ursd at an :amcunt equ.! to lif" timIi IlxpsdIId 1c1;~ i.lI. IIxpIlCUId c:lt;:h s:hortf:IIl, i:xIIng Glmpltned approach for ratcgnilion of impairment
IciOG allOv.'iihOO.

Under simplifittd approach, the Company does not 1Teck chanlJElS in Cledit risk Rather it """'O"i<es impaimlent loss allowance baaed on !he lifetime Eel. ~
each reporting data right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a prevision matrix to determine impairment loss all0W9noe on the portfolio of trade
r&CIIiwble!5. The provision matrix is bal58d on in; historically ob5fIlV9d d9f!lult I'3IBI; over 1tlA QXJlf!cled life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward
looking estimates. At ewry repor1lng elate, U!e tliatoMCaI ob&eMld ISelaUit rates ell!l ~ and Changes in the forward-looking ~mAtA$. lire linaly""d

For financial assets other than trade receivables. Itle Company r9OO!ll1isee12--months eJ¢Jecied credit losses fer all originated or acquired financial aaset81t
at the reporbng date the credftnSk otihe 'flnencl8l'asse! has nO!'ncreasecI ~ sil'lCe"its; initial nJeOgnitiOn. 'fhe ~'cr8dit 10&_ QI'$ measured'
as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit rie;k on financial <J5I5I!It inc,._ &ignificantIy since iIs initial recognition. If, in 8 subseql.Joilntperiod, credit
quality of !he instrument improvll5 such !hit thIN''' is; no Iongar 5ignificant i~ in crd rSks sJnc9 Initial rooognltiOn, then the Company rovorts tg

recognizing impairment ioee 3Iowance based 01'1 12 mon1hs ECL The impgirment 1csses and f9'oIIIf'S8Is are f9COIJIu-l JJ Statement of profit and Loss. For
equity inlstrumerms and finanGiai ~ rnea5UI'ed at FVTPl, tt-e is no requirement of impgirment te$1Ing.

Derecognitkm
11)9...~l)y ~lWi..~ ~~_wtlft!l tb!I.~l!!I rilt4Ji1..ttlfI.~ ~ fr~. tty, fi~1 86$et .(1, or it.~~.~.~ ~
C86Il ftow6 from an 366«, It evakJate5 If and III ~ exIent It has retained tile rl$k$ and rewards Of ownership. w.-, it has neither "nsterred nor retained
8ubetllntially aUof 1M rPsM and 1'tIWa~ of 1M aosEoet, I'1Of tnm6ferred oontroI of the asset, the ComPQI'IVOOI'I1inUefI to r9CUQrliav the transferred II88et to th!!
emnt of the Company'" continuing involvement.

In th;ot~, tho, Cornp"''lY alo;n roo<Jgnio;;et;;'In ~imOO liability. Too trailGfmOO aGGet lind the IISGOCiated lIabllttv .,.. "_y~ on a bMio that re1Ioct& the
ngllls ;lnd oblog:abnn~ tfl;1t the COl'l'l~y ~ ~nod.

(II FInancial Llablltuaa
Inlttlll ReoognlUon and Measurement
Financial liabilities are reoognl$ed when the Conrpllny IN\;urnes a party to the contractual provision!! of _ Instn.llTltl'ltt.. Financial liabilities are initially
flIcogntQOd at hlir valuo n~ of ti'ar1$8C;ticncoe1B for all financialliabilitiee not o;miad iJt fair value through profit or lass.
Tile CcmJ)8ny',. financial li.bilitift ineludft tnd. and oth.r payablec, loan~ sand ~a including b3nk OV ...... rafts.
SulNlequent Meuurement
Fi""""i~lli,,L;lil;""; ""'tc~l!;!<,) ~!wrrfJf~~ ..;w! I:IIIIWWtKl_ltIy rTl8!I8Ured at usll'lQ EIR method. Flnanclat llabllllles earrled at fair value 1I1roullh proht Dr
loss are moo,,"urcd at rHO' IIHlu.. wi~, .. Lf_'Il....in fair val"" racagniwed in the tibrt8ment of F'roIit and L~.

Loans & Bon'owInga
AfUlr initial recognition, interest beari:lg loans and borrowinga 11/'8 aubslequenlly l'l'M9ured at amorti8ed CO&t ~ EIR method. Gains and ~ AlA

recognized in profit & Io3a ..men Itle liehilititte are derecognized IIl!I wei lIS through EIR IIf1ICli ti:z:alici , process.

Financial Clu__ Contracbo

Financial gl..llill'Bnt&6 COl'IttlIdlI iMued by thfI Company are thoee COI'Itracte that reqUires 3. payment to t.;, n1>:ldeor to ''';IIILut_ II ... I,ulo.l", ru, 11111'>'"it i~u~
~~ tho QpGClIIod dobtcre fails to make p3yment when due in 3CI)OI'd;)rrce with tho term of a debt iMtrumenl l'il'l.ncial au.r.nt.e coniraGt& a~
recognized Inf1:!allVtl$ tl liability at fair value, ad;J8ted for IrIlll68Ction C06I8 thalare direell)' atbibutlIbI!! til thIiIISSUanCQ of thA OUANlnb=le

IJe-f'eGOgnilion
/II, fil"ll!lnr.ioollioohili!} i" <:Io!or"!ICQQn~wllo!on111"ooligl!llion undI!Ir th!! liabHity Is dI.ct1l1rged or canclilld or ~~, W"",,n an ellietiny financialliallllTty Ie repl~
by another from tho !lQmo londor on ~bWlntiQlIy dit'f9t'ont lIlrmll, Of' tho wnm of an cift"9 liability are fI..b..tonti"lly modified, ~ an oxohQr1ge or
mndHln:'lfinn I.:.tnvJtnd nr. thn rimnlgoltton 01 tho origlnallJabilhy lind the reoognltlon of;l heW I~ljty. Ih. drf1Wr.nc. In the rHp8Cthl' carrying amount& k.
recognized In the statement of prom or Iosi..



orrsetting of Flnanclallnstnments

Financial Assets and Financial liabilities are atrset and !he net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet, if th8fB is a currently enforceable legal right to
offwt the reoogni5ed ;mlQUnts and thore is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 5imulIilFJeOU$ly.

(I) Fair Value Measurement
The Company measu~ financial instruments, such as, derivatives, investments at fair valuf! at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset Dr paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market JlI'!rticipams at the measurement dete. The flair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the tiabitity takes place either:

(e) In !he principal market for the asset or liability, or
(b) In !he absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on !he lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

(i) level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) mar1<et prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

(ii) level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant in !he fair value measurement is directly Dr" indirectly observable
(iii) level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant in the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial s1atemen1s on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
~ levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing caIegOrisation (based on !he lowest level input that is significant to the fair value mllaSUmTlent as a whole)
at the end of each reporting ~.

For the purpose of fair value disclosurea, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basia of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or liability and the level of ttle fair value hierarchy as explained above.

(k) Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents includa cash and Cheque in hand. bank balances, demand deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convet1ibIe to known amounts of cash & which Sffi subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where oris;Iinal maturity is three months
or less.

(I) Foreign exchange transactions & translations
a} Initial Recognition
Transactions in foreign C1Jrrency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailinQ on the date at the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign
exchange transactions setIIed during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss of the year.

b) Measurement of Foreign Currency items at Hte Balance Sheet Dab!

Foreign currency monetary items at the Company are restated at the closing axchange rates. Non monetary items are recorded at the BlCChange rate
prev:;iiling on the data of the transaction. Exchange differences aIiaing out of these transactions are charged to the Statement of profit and Loss.

(m) Revenue from Contracts wiill Customers:
ElTective Interest Rate Method
Interest income is recognised in Statement of profit and Loss using effective interest rate methrxl for all financial instruments at amortised cost, debt
1I!911Ummt··~at·FVOCIand-debtllf&tNment·~-at-FVfPL ~'efftKllJVe-lnten!9t-rlite' is·ltt&tiHIHri8t·~~~~1.itfji';'·
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument.
Calculation of effective interest includes transaction cost and fees that are an integral part of the contract Transaction cost include incremental cost that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset.
If eXpeCtations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons oiher than credit risk, the adjustment is recorded as positive or
negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset, in the balance sheet, with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is
subsequentty amortised through interest income in the StaiBmenl: of profit and loss

Interest
The Company caIcubtes in1Bn!st income relatBd 1Dfinancing business by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial asset other than c:redit-
impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit- impaired, !he Company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of
the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit impaired. the Company reverts in calculating interB$t income on a gross basis.

Dividend
DMdend income is recognized when right in receive the same is established and shown as part of investment and dividend income

Rental Income
Rental Income is recognised in the statement of profit & loss as per contractual rentals unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern.

G;lin on Sale of Inv ...... nt I Redemption of MUN;l1 Funds
On disposal of an lnves1ment, the difference between the carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the Profit and Loss
statement.

(n) Taxa on Income
Income Tax comprises of current and deferred tax, Income tax expense is reeognized in the statement of profit and toss except in !he extent it relates to
items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is based on fal(able profit for the year. Taxable profit is diffarenl from accounting profit due in temporary differences between accounting and tal(

treatments, and due to i1ems that are never taxable or tax deductible. Tax provisions are included in current liabilities Interest and penalties 011 tax liabilities
are provided for" in the tax charge. The Company offiu!ts:, the current tax ~ and Ii:Ibllities: (Qf1 a YGQron YOQrbasis) where it has a legally enforceable
right and where it intends to settle such B5S8Is and liabilities on a nat basis or to realise the assets and liabilitiee on net basis.

Deferred Income tax 16 recognIZed Ualng the balance sheet approacn, Deferred income tax asseIs and liabilities are remgnized for deductible and taxable
temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements. Deferred income 1ax asset are
recognized to the extant that it is probable that taxable prolit will be available against which !he deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tal( credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are not recognised where it is mont fikeiy than not !hat the assets will not be
realised in the future.



The carrying amcu1t of defemId income tax as1;ets is nMewed at each reporting data and raduoed to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxabie profit will be available to aIow .. or part d the deferred income tax asset to be utilized_ Deferred income tax assets and liab~i1ies are maasurad at
the tax rates that are 8xpectBd to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the IlatMlty Is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or aubstin1illely enaClBd at the reporting daIB_

Defem!d tax items are recognised in oorrelation to the underlying InInsaction ei1her in OCI or directly in equity_

Minimum Alternative Tax ('MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there i$ convincing evidence that the Compeny will pay
normal incorne-1ax during the specII'Ied pel1od. The Company reviews the same at ~ balance sheet data and writes down the carrying amount of MAT
credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer corMneing avidence to the affect that Company will pay normal income-tax duma the specified period.

(0) BornIwing Cost
Genend and specific borrowing costs that are directly attri>utabIe to the acqui&ition. consIruction or production of qualifying assets are capilalized as a part
of Cost of that assets. during the period til aI the activities necessary to prepare the Qualifying assets for its intended use or sala are complete during the
period of time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get naady for their intended use or sale_

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred_

{pI Earning Per Share
Basic Earning Pel" Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss aftsr tax for the period atbibu1able to equity shan!hoIders by the weighted average
number of equity share& outstanding duing the period_ For the purpose of C8k::Uating dikJt8d earning per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to the equity shar-ehokiers and the weighted a'_' number of sharesoutstanding during the period is adjusted for the affects of all dilutive
potantial equity shares_

(q) Finance Cost
Finance cost includes in1erest 9lCpeIlS8 computed by applyillQ effective interest rBIB on respectille financial instnument measured at amortised cost bQnk
term loans, non-convertible debentures, debt Finance costs are charged to stBblment of profit and loss_

(r) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
A pl1lVision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the group has a present legal or constnuctive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of econorric benefits wiI be requined to settle the obligation.
Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when !he expected beneIi1s to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable
costs of meeting the fuUe oIlligalioi IS under the connel.
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a poss.bIe obtigalion or a pre5ent obligation that may probably not require an outflow of
I'9SOUrc:G$01' an -cCIigation for which 1h9·futtlr9'outcorTIBccannot'be--~ -voittH'easonabIG certainty, When.th_ is a-po$Sible or a:pI"8&I9IlI obligation
where the likelihood d outflow of resources is remote. no provision or discIosuts is made.
Contingent aesets are neither ~nized nor di&closed in financial statemen1s.

(s) Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting prOllided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM).

It) Leases
Till March 31. 2lt19
L_lIIlV1!lEriliUl119~ 1h&-lIIlk&- & ~ IIft)RtentII te-lNe-~of-lIIl--Miflillt-~ Ye9t'Witfto ~~ al'e-1«lOfiht'Zi!ll--1i!t- ~~
Operating Iea&e payments are recognized on straight line basis 0Y8I' the lease term in the statement on profit & loss, unless the lease agreement explicitly
states that increase is cn account of infIation_

From April 1, 2019
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases eftecti\Ie 1st April, 2019, using the modified retrospectille method. The Company has applied the standard
to its leases with the cumulative impact recognised on the data of initial application (1at April, 2(19). Accordingly. pl'8llious period information has not been
restated_

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of 1ea9SS for Land and Buikings. 'The Company _ whether a contract is 01' contains a lease. at
inception of a cootract. A contract is, or contains. a lease if the contract conveys the rijjrt to cootroI the use of an idBnIified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration_ To assess whether a contract conveys the light to control1he use of an identified asset. the Company assesses whether:
(a) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(b) tI1e Company has SIbs1antiaIty all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(c) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencemant of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-USB asset (,ROU·) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and leases of low 'Value assets, For!hese
-short 1Wm.and-1aasas of-law.valU8-asseCs, 1h$.~ recognisG5 -tf'»-~payrnants-a6 an-operatiR9-~on-a--slraigl1t-ine-cba8i8 _ ttl&- term of
1118 lease_

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjustBd for any lease PQyments made at or
prior to the commencement date of the ._ plus any initial direct costs ... any lease incentives. They are su~uently measured at cost Jess
accumulated depreciation and irnpa«ment Ioeeee, If any. Right--ot--use iI$wI$ an. ~ from the commenoemont date on a slnlight--line basis fN9r the
shorlBf of the lease term and uaefu! life of the underlYing asset

The lease liability s initially measur9d at the present value of the future lease payments_ The lease payments are di6c:ounted using the interest rate implicit
in-tNt IeHe- ~~ IFnot-ll!i!!fHy-det8mli~, uei~ lh1t. ~ ~1'8fi!i8: l'l1&- '-liability It!!~ent!y:~red by iI'ICi--eiHII"ng the- CMyIng-
amount to reftect interest on tI1e I_liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made_ A lease liability is rerneasured upon the
occurrenc:a of certain events such as iii change in the lease 1mm a a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement
normally also adjusts the leased assets.

L_1iebiIity and ROU asset haw been aeparateIy presented in the BaIMce Sheet and lsase payments haw ~ classified as financing caah flows.



K1DUJA INDIA UIIUTED
Nola to the FIMnaiaI SQtaments for the year ended March 31, 2020

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BAlANCE SHEET

As It
31/Mlrl2020
IRa. In '000)

As at
01/Aprl2018
(Ra. In '000)

542.64 388.60 125,362.09

5oU.64 386.60 125,362.0t

434,830,00 287,653.59 546,29UlO

187,508.43 371,491.25
434-;830;00· 476-,1&2:82· "917,T82,~

434,830.00 475,162.02 917.182.25
434,830.00 475,162.02 t171782.25

Note No.2
1, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand
Balances with Banks in Current Aeewrlts

29.03
22.81
51.84

Note No.3
INVESTMENTS
Investments in Equity Instruments - Measured at Fair Value Ihrough profit & loss
Quoted & Fully paid up:
Quess Corp Ltd.
{As at 31-Mar-2020 - Nil; As at 31-Mar-2019 - Nil; As at 01-Apr-201B - 2.00,000 equity shares]
Bsndhan Bank Ltd.
{As at 31-Mar-2020 - N~;As at 31-Mar-2019 - N~;As at 01-Apr-2018 - 2.46.619 equity shares]

Investments in Ventul1! Capital Funds - Measured at Fair Value through ProfIt & loss
India GrowIh Fund, par1ly paid up
[As at 31-Mar-2020 - Nil; As at 31-Mar-2019 - Nil; As at 01-Apr-2018 -112,065.60 units]
Ko1ak India Venture Fund-t, fully paid'up
{As at 31-Mar-2020 - Nil; As at 31-Mar-2019 - Nil; As at 01-Apr-2018 - 60,000 units]
Kotak Alternate Opportunities (India) Fund

others - Measured at Fair Value through Prolit & loss
Time Share license of Starting Resorts (India) Ltd,

(il Investments outside India
(ii) Investments in India

Aggregate Impairment Allowance
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments at cost

Note No.4
OTHER FINANCIAl ASSETS
-Deposits

Advances recoverable in cash or kind
11:94

17.94
Note No. II
TRADE PAYABLES
Tracie Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small EnlBrpri$es
(in Totat outstanding dues at Creditors other INn Micro Enterprises and SmaR Entsrprises
(Refer' Note No.1iHor disclosure under Micro, Small and·"Medium EnIBrprises Dev8Iopmerit hit; 20''!6)· _

Note No. 6
BORROWINGS
Unsecured, at AmortIsed Cost
L""n s from Related Parties (tntonm frw)'
Secured
Loanli from Body Corpomes

Borrowings outside India

Borrowings In India

• Nota: Interest free Loam; from related parties is repayable on 30th September, 2021

As at
31/Marl2019
IRa. in '000)

29.97
41.27
71.24

17.94

31.98
60.59
92.56

109.332.98

314.932.98

12,907.72

21-,191.00

56.728.26
90,817.78

405,750.76
405,750.76

567,714.99

fr.94
6.90

24.84

L"""" fmm a Body Corpo_ amounting 10 Rs. NIL (As It 31-Uor·2019 . Rs.18.75.oe.428: As at 01·April·2018 • Rs. 371.491.247) was secured by way of I.." m.rkad on lhe
Unib of Venlure Captal Funds. further """uno:! by way of mortgage of properties of an assocIaN body corp<>fIP and pe~al guarantee of the Managing Director of the Company.

Note No.7
PROVISIONS
Provision for Employee Banefils
Provision for Income Tax

1.020.67 822.62

822.62

708.87
30.96

739.83



Aaat
31/Mar12020
(Rt. In "000)

As at
31/Mar12019
(Rs. in '000)

As at
01/AprJ2018
(Rs. In "000)

KIOWA INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET

Nole No.8
Ol't4ER lifOlllcmlll"Nl:111\.1.lABIlIT11!$
5latutory Dues Payable 27.64 3,318.71 2811.91

27." 3,318.71 2,&11.91
Note NO.9
SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
1,750,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 17,500.00 17,500.00 171500.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAlD-UP
''!-,71-5,000'Equity ShafO$ cif Rs:fOeach, 'fully paid'up u;no:oo t7j 1'50:00' 17.'150.00

AR T' of the bel' of Shar outstand· at 31 Mar 2020econCllatlon num es Ing86 - -
partlculafs As at 31-M .. -2020 As at 31-Mar-2019

Nos. Rs. in '000 Nos. Rs. in '000
Shares ouholanding at lhto booyinning or tho y_.- 1,715.000 17.150 1,715.000 17.150
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares bought back during the year - - - -

. ShlmI& ·.lhe-~(jf1tle-vear·· 1.715,000 17;150 1.715.000 1-7.150

B. The Company has issued one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs.l0 per share. Eaoh shareholder has right to vole in respect of such share on
~ery resolution placed before the Company and his voting right on a pol shall be in proportion to his share of the paid·up equity capiIBI of the Company. In !he.
event of liquidation. the equity shareholders are entitfed to receive the remairing asseIs 01 the Company afte( payments to secured and umecured creditors, in
proportion to their shareholding.

C DeIBis of Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder
No. of %:of. T.ota~

Shares Holding
Mr. Ashish D. Jaipuria
AliI at 31-Mar-2020 1.115.000 65.01
tv. at 31-Mar·2019 1.115.000 65.01
AI; at 01 :APr-201S 1.115,000 65.01

o Particulars of shares allobd (without payment being received in cash)Jbought back during 5 y&anl immediately preceding 31-Mar-2020

1'articulars ~.number. of..sharM.
(for last 5 Financial Years)

Allotted PUr9uant tD con1ract(s) WIttloutpayment being_received in cash Nil
AIlOU9d bv waY or bonus aharee Nil
Shares bought back. Nil

Note No. 10
OTHER EQUITY

a) CapIWI Reserve No. 1 (Arising upon amalgamation of 8 Company)
As per last Balance Sheet
Closing Balance

c) Securities Premium
As per last 'Balance Sheet
Closing Balance

605.58 605.58 60558
60$.51 6011.1111 -~80S.SI1

650.00 650.00 650.00
--050:00 650.00- 660.00

1'.90000 1,950:00- 1~OO-
1,950.00 1,950.00 1,950.00

13.127.00 13,127.00 13.127.00
13,127.00 13,127.00 13,127.110

(5-13;003.35) (6"",:31049) (487.200.64)
43.249.61 161,227.14 {207.109.B5~

~4811,1I33.741 (1513,083.361 ~7"1310.491

!4fi3.5D1.17! 14M,7SO.77) !!!7,977.1I1!

b) Capital R_ No.2 (Arising upon re-ia8ue of forleiled "ha .. ",)
AI; per IliI6t Balance Sheet
Closing Balance

d) Speci;l1 Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet
Closing Balance

e) surplUS I (dotlClt) In Statement of Profit" Loss
As per 1m B'alanoe ·Shtilft·
Add: I...oBs fur the y"r
Closing Balance

TOTAL

Nature and purpose Of reserves;
a) Capital Re5erVe No. 1 - Represents reserve aIising upon amaIgam&tion of II Company
b)Capitl!ll~_I'\I9·No. 2-~sprsiieIllli·~.~upon~affo;feitsd~&IlID
c) Securities Premium is used to reo::ord the premium on issue of sharae. 1he reaerve wilt be utilised in aeeordance with tI1e provisions of the CCII'npan_ Act,
d) Special Reserve • Represents reserve created pursuant !Q the NBFC regulations
e) SUrplusl(defic:it) in S1atement til' profit & Loss - Represents retained eaminge pertain to the a<X;umu!alBd eamingsl(I0SS8S) made by the. Company over the



1.42

KIOWA INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF THE PROFIT AND l068

Year ended
31-Mar -2020
(Rs. in '000)

Yeareoded
31-Mar....z019
(RI. In 'OOfll

Nole No.1t
lNCO"M£ FROM OPERATIONS
Net galnl(loss, on fair value changes
an tlnandallnsmoment$ designated as fair value through profit & ImI:I:
- Prnlit from Sale of Current Invastmenl$ (Net)
- Profit/CLoss) on Trading in Derivatives (Net)
- Profitl(Loss) from Long Term Investment in Venture Capital Funds (Net)

197,192.41
2,072.07
7.424.32

Fair value changes
- Realised
-Unrealised

206,688.80

206,638.80
Note No. 12
OTHER INCOME
Interest on Income tax refund

Note No. 13
"FtN"ANCE 'COSTS
Interest Expenses

- On loans at amortised cost
- On others

1.42

41,B95.90
0.05

41.81111.95

1.616.36 1.528.92
25J~5· 3-1.30

1,844.02 1,560.22

104.47 111.13
6.60 7.25

73.77 n,9'3
988.70 212.40
238.10 ~;6S.
107.53 91.82
127.54 142.43

250.00 250.00
177.00

46.17 45.82
354.00 295.00

32,4Q flfi.3,1,
138.00
49.82

96.81 68.60
;425,18 2,000.28

No .. No. 14
I:MPlOYEE 8ENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and Wages
StalfWeIfare 'ElCpenses

Note No. 15
OTHER EXPENSES
Rapairll & Maintenance - Building

-Othe~
Electricity Expenses
legal and Professional ChargM;
·MotDr Car Elcpenaes.
TeIecommlSlication ~
Regi&trat & Transfer Agent Expenses
Audruxs'R9mu~on:

Audit Fees
TaxAuditF_
Out of Pocket Expen_ Including GST

ListingF_
C~~.~~
Brokerage & Transactior1 Charg9!>
Securities Transaction Tax
Miscellaneous Expenses



A reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the effective income tax rate of the
Company is as follows:
(b)"Reconciliation of Effective -TaxRate
Profit Before Taxation
Enacted Income Tax rate in India
Tax at the enacted Income Tax Rate

KIDUJA INDIA LIMITED
NohIs to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note No. 16
Income Tax
(a) Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Current Tax Expense
Tax relating to prior.years.
Total Current Tax
Deferred Taxes
Total Income Tax expense I (credit)

For year ended
March 31, 2020

(1Q.37}
(10.37)

(10.31)

43,239.24
25.17%

10,883.32

Reconciliation line items:
Tax benefit not recognised on accumulated tax losses
(whiCh was not rM'.ogni!;Ai'l in MniAr years)
Others
Tax Expense Charge I (Credit)

(10;883,32),

(10.37)
(10.37)

(Rs. in 'ODD)
Foryearanded
March 31, 2019

161.233.77
26.00%

41,920.78

-(4.1..~n7R)

6.63

6:63.
6.63

6.63

6.63

Details of Tax Losses and UnabSorbed Depreciation
The Company has unused tax losses of RS.539,956 thousand (as at March 31 2019 - RS.209,332 tnousand, and as at April
'01. 201-8'_ -Rs_ 51.286.thousand). These. lessescan.be. carried. forward for e assessment yearn. The company has. not.
recognised any tax credit on the same in view of uncertanity as to recoverability of those losses. These tax losses will
explre by assessment year 2027-28

Note No.· 17
Disclosure Pursuant to IND AS • 19 "Employee Benefits"
The Company has made provision for leave entitlement and gratuity as per its Accounting Policies as stated In NOle no. 1
above which is in variance with Ind AS 10 _Employee Benefits. However, the same does not have material impact on the
financial statements of the Company.

Mic'ro, f)riiBiH' arid Medium enterprises (MSME,'
The details of amounts outstandino to Mir.ro, Small and Medium Enterpri~s under the Micro, Small and Medium
Entemrises Develogment Ad& 2006 (MSMED Actt based on the avail~bleJnformation with the Company are as und~r: ,

As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31.2019

Note No. 18

Particulars

Principal amount due and remaining unpaid
Interest due on (1) above and the unpaid Interest
Interest paid on all delayed payments under the MSMED Act
Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest dtte and payable for the periad.-Gf -delay other. ..ban .·(3)above
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years

Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

N.9&e No.·Ul
Earning Per Share

Year ended
March 31', 2020

(4,258.82)
43.249.61

Particulars

Net Profit I (Loss) for the year, before exceptional items
Net Profit I (Loss) for the year, after exceptional items

Weighted Aver~ numberof Eqtiil'Y'Sh~ 1,715.00

Basic and Diluted Earning per Equity Share· before exceptional items
Basic and Diluted Earning per Equity snare- after exceptional items
Face Value per Equity Share

(2.48)
25.22
10.00

(Rs. in '000)
Year ended

March 31, 2019
161,227.14
161,227.14

1',715.00

94.01
94.01
10.00



KIDUJA INDIA UMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note No. 20
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
The company does not have any contingent liabilities and commitments as on March 31, 2020.
(Nil as on March 31, 2019).

Note No. 21
Segment Reporting
The Company's Board of Directors consisting of Managing Director has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM) as defined under Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments". The CaDM evaluates the Company's performance and
allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators. The Company is primarily engaged in
business of Investments and dealing in Shares and securities for the purpose of reporting under Ind AS 108 • on "Segment
Reporting".

Note No. 22
Related Party disclosure under Ind AS 24
Name and descrtptlon of Related Parties:

Name Relationship
A. Key Management Personnel

Mr. Ashish D. Jaipuria (ControllingParty) Managing Director
Mrs. Archana A. Jaipuria Director

Mrs. Kirti D. Jaipuria Director (resigned on 02-03-2020) and
Relative of Key Management Personnel

Mr. Darshan Kumar Jain Chief Financial Officer
B. Associates

JaipuAa· Residem;y· Private ·limited· -KMP-·havirnrslgnlflGant· control

Transactions during the year with Related Parties: (Rs. in '000)
For year ended
March 31,2020

For vear ended
March 31, 2019

Name of Related Party

A. Key Management Personnel:
·Mr. Ashish D. Jaipuria

- Interest free Loan taken
- PurCllase of Investments
- Sale of Investments
- Repayment of Loan

Mrs. Archana A. Jaipuria
- Interest free Loan taken
- Repayment of Loan

Mr. Kirti D. Jaipuria
- Interest tree Loan taken
- Repayment of Loan

Mr. Darshan Kumar Jain, CFO
- Remuneration

B. Associates:
Jalpuria Residency Pvt. Ltd.

- Interest free Loan taken
• Repayment of Loan

147,200 95,090
141,950

90,396
130,7364

59,973
59.973

39,865
134,606

631

20
fRs. in '000)

Balances as at year end;

Mr. Ashish D. Jaipuria
·MIS. ArohanaA. Jaiput1a.
Mr. Darshan Kumar Jain
Mr. Kirti D. Jaipuria
Jaipuria Residency Pvt. Ltd.
Guarantee provided - Jaipuria Residency Pvt. Ltd
Personal Guarantee provided· Mr. Ashish D. Jaipuria

As at
March 31. 2020

163,100 51,550

As at
March 31, 2019

15,904

As at
April 1,2018

102

271,730 271.750
187,508
187,508

94,741
400,000
371,491
371,491

1. R.elated parties are as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.
2. No amount pertaining to Related Parties have been provided for as doubtful debts I written back.
3. Terms and conditions of transaction with related parties: the transactions among the related parties are in the ordinary
course Of business based on normal ccmmerciat terms, conditions, market rates. Forthe year ended 31st March, 2020, the
Company has not recorded any loss allowances for transactions between tile related parties.
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KIOUJA INDIA LIMITED
Notes to II'Ie Financial Statements for the year ended March 31.2020

Note No. 23
Financial Instruments
The fair values of the financial BlSSBts and liabilities are included At ttl!! AmOU"lt at whidl the instrument coukl be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced Q( liqUidation sale.

The followlno Methode and Aaaumjltions were u:sed to eSl1HIte the Fair Valuc:J;
1. Fair value of cash Bnd short-term deposll$, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, short term loans from banks and
other financial institutions approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.
2. Financial instruments With fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters $uctl as interest rates and individual credtt
worthiness of the counterpsrty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of
such instruments is not materially different from their carrying amounts.

The Group uses the folloWing hierarchy for determining and disclosing the Fair Value of Financial Instruments by valuation technique:
Levell: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: other techniques for which all inpuls which have a significant effect on the reccrded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant elfect on the recorded fair value !hat are not based on observable market data.

The carrytng Amounts and Fair Values of Financlallnstrumenls by category are as follows:

financial liabilities
Trade .pliY~!;
Borrowings;

fRs. in 'OOOl

fVTPL Amortised Total
Cost Fair Value

51.84 51.84
17.94 17.94
69.78 69.78

542.64 542.64
434 830.00 434830.00
435.372.64 435.372.64

71.24 71.24
17.94 17.94
89.18 89.18

3/\!'iM 386.60
475162.02 41~ 162.02
-41.-5,-&18.42 ~16,~.62

92.56 92.56
405,750.76

24.84 24.84
-405,750.76 117..0 117.40

125,3G2;09 125,302:09
017782.25 917782.25

1.043,1«'34 1,043,144.34

As at March 31.2020
Flnandal Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Financial Assets

Finanl:iall.jab~itie5
TrRdR PBYRblRR
BorrOwings

As at March 31, 2019
Financial Assets

Cash al"ld Cash Equivalents
Other Financial Assets

Financlal UabUltles
Trade Payables
Borrowings

As at April 1. 2018
Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivale!'lt$
Investments
Other Financial Assets

Fair Value EstlmaHon
FOI fimmcial ifllSlrulllllnn. lIleasurlld at fair valull in tile Balance Sheet, a three level fair value hierarchy is used thal n:ntl\;l::; UIIII ~9nirtt:cll1l:1! 01 iFlIlUll; used in the
measurements. Tl1e Illeral'(;t)y gIVes the hIghest pnomy to unadjusted quoted prices In actIVe markets for identical assets or liabilitiol!!I (Levell measurements)
and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurernents).

The categorIeS used are as folloWs;
• Levell: Quoted prices for identical instruments
• Level 2: directly or indirectly observable merxet inputs, other than Levell inputs; and
• Level 3: inputs which are not based on observable market data.

For assets and llablfities whiCh are carried at fair value, the dassific:ation of fair value calculations by cat8gory Is summarised below:
Mardi 31, 2020 Level 1 Level2 Level3

Invmments in Equity Shares· Quoted
lrtVe$bnents in Venture Capital FI,Il,js

March 31,2019
Investments in Equity Shares· Quoted
Investments in Venture Capital Funds

April 1, 2018
Investments in Equity Shares - Quoted
Investments In Venture Capital Funds

314,932.98



As at April 1, 2018
Non-Derivative Uabililies

BorrOlNlngs
Trade Payables

917,782.25
125,362.09

917,782.25
125,362.09

Nil
Nil

KIOWA INDIA UMITED
Notes to the flnanctal Statements fOr the year ended Ma rch 31, 2020

Note No. 24
financial RISk Management
The Company's principal financial tiaMities comprise loans and borrowings, advances and trade and other payables. The purpose of these financial liabilities
is to finance the Company's operati<Jns and to provide to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company's activities exPoses it to Uquility Risk, Market Risk and Credit risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policieS for managing each of
these risks, which are summarised as below.

Uquldlty Risk
The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting ob~ations associated with financial tiab~ities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. Liquidity risk management implies maintenance of sufficient cash induding availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet the obligations as and when due.

The company does not have arT'j undrawn borrowing facilities as on March 31, 2020. The borrowings ava~ed by the Company is from the Promotors and as
per contractual terms they are short term in nature

III) Tile folloWIng Is 1be Contractual Maturitie& of 1be Financial LJabllties: IRs, in 'OOO}
Carrying 1 -12 More than
Amount Months 12 Months

434,830.00 434,830.00 Nif
542.64 542.64 Nil

As at March 31, 2020
Non-O&riVative Uabilities

Borrowings
Trade Payables

As. at March 31, 2019
Non-Derivative Uabilities

Borrowings
Trade Payables

475,162.02
386.60

475,162.02
386.60

N~
Nil

Note No. 25
first Ume adoption of 100AS

The accounting poticie!O set out in Note No.1, have been applied in prl!paling the financ:ial statements from the year ended March 31, 2020, !he comparatIVe
1n10rmatlOn-presente'<lln these 1IrIanoIa1'statements 10r treyear ended-Marcttll, 2019 andl'l 'lhell!'e'lJaratior ....ofanOfjel1ing-·1m:!AS MI~'sIleet at AprilO1.
2016 (the Company's date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS bal:ilnce sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported pre ....iously in financial
statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Ac<;ounting StsOOard6) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other
relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GMP). An elCplon:rtion of how the transition from previous GMP to In<! AS has affected the
Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flOW$ is set out in the following tables and notes.

Exemptions and exceptions avaUed

A. Ind AS mandatory exemptions

II) Esllmates
An entity's 65timate6 in accordance WIIh Ind ASs at the dlIlt: Dr harmon lo 100 AS shilll be co~ntwith estimates made rOt th4!!same d:;rtg in =rdance
WIttI preVIOUSGAAP (alter adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies). Ina A::l estimates as at April 01, 2018 are consistent with the estimates
as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP.

1he Company made estimates for fojJClWingitem in accordance wilh Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:
- Impairment of frnancial a$$Gl$ ba$ed on ~ed c;red~ loss model.

(II) Classification and measurement of fblanclal auets
Ind AS 101 requir91l an entity to eesess classirlCation aid measurement of financial assets on the baaie of the facts and cil'cumstances that exi6t at the date of
transition to Ind AS.

B. Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations
The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences arising from the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS in
accordance with Ind AS 101:
(I) Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 (Transition date)
(ii) Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at Marcfl31, 2019 and Reconcifiation oftota! comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2019
(iii) Reconciliation of Eql&ty as at April I , 2018 and Marro 31, 701 A
(iv) Impact on cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2019



KlDUJA INDIA UMITED
Notes to the FInancial Statements fQr the year ended March 31, 2020

The Pf'9Sentation reqtiremente under previous GAAP differs from Ind N5 and hence, PllIvious GAAP information has been r!!grouped fer ease of reconciliation
with Ind AS. The regrouped previous GAAP information is derived from the Financial Statements of the Company prepared in accordance with previous GAAP.

'I) ReconcUlation of Balance Sheet as at.AR_rll1 2018 iRs. In '0001

PARTICULA'RS' Previous IndAS
1M ASGAAP" AdjUstments

ASSETS:
Financial AMeb;
C8lOhand Cash Equivalents 9256 · 92.56
Investments 567,799.49 (162,04873) 405,750.76
Other Financial Assets 24.84 · 24.64
Total Assets 567916.89 (162048.731 405 868.18

LIABILITIES & EQUITY:
FInancial Llabllllles
Payables
Trade PayablM
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises ·
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micra enterprises and small enterprises 125,362.09 · 125,38.2.09

Bo1'J'OWlJlg$ '917,182.25 - "917,782.25 .

Non.flnanclal Llabllilies
Provisions 739.83 - 739.83
Other Non-Financial Uabilities 2811.91 - .2 611.91
Total Liabiities 1,048 696.07 · 1046696.07

EQUITY:
Equity Share Capital 1'7;150"00 . - f7;15000
Other Equity (495929.18 _L162 048.731 165Hm.91
Total Equity (478779.18) (162048.73) 1640827.91

Total Liabilities and Equity 567916.89 _j_162041.7~ 405868.16

Ill) ReconCiliation of Balance sheet liS at March 31 2019 IRs. In '000)

PARTICULARS PrwtOU6 IndAS
IndASGAAP* Ad~ustmeoQ

ASSETS:
Financial Assets;
Cast! and Cash EquMllents 7124 · 71'4
lrwestrnents · .
OIher Financial Assets 17.94 · 17.94
Non-flnanctal As5ets: - · -
Total Assets 89.18 · 89.18

LIABILITIES & EQUITY:
Financial Liabilities
payables
Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpr~ - · .
(if} total ouIstandinll dUII!!~of ~rll!!tlitnrs:.t'lthe.r tnaR micro emerprises.and.smaOenterpri'ieS. 386.S0 - 386.60

Borrowings 475,162.02 - 475,182.02

Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions 822.82 - 822.82
other Non·Financial Uabilities 3318.71 - 3318.71
Total UabUIiles 479 689.95 · 479689.95

EQUITY:
Equity Share Capital 17,150,00 - 17,150.QO
other Equity (496750.77 - (4967S0.TI)
Total Equity (479600.77 · (479600.77)

Total Liabilities and Equity 89.18 · 89.18



KIDUJA INOlA UMrrED
Notes to the financial Statements fOr the year ended March 31, 2020

flU} Reconciliation of Statement of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31 20111 (Rs. in '000)

PARTICULARS
Previous IndAS

100 AS
GAAP* AQlustments

REVENUE:
Revenue from Dperalions
- Net .Qain on fair value chang.e 44,725.57 191.,963.23. 206,688.80

other Income 1.42 - 1.42
Total Revenue 44.126,99 181963.23 206690.22

EXPE~SES:
Finance Costs 41,895.90 - 41,895.90
Employee Benefits Exp(lns(l 1,560.22 - 1,560.22
other Expenses 2000.33 - 2000.33
Total ~penses -'S.&56.M. - 4,468.-45

Proftt Before Tax (729 •.a 161963.23 161233.77

Tax Expenses
Current Tax 6.63 - 663

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1738.09 1619&3.23 181227.14

Other COf\'Ij)reheMlve Income - - -
Total comprehenSIVe Income for the Year .1736.09 1811163.23 161,227.14

(Iv) Reconciliation at Equity liS IItAprU 1,2018 and Marcn 31, 2019
As at

311Mari2019
(496,665.27)

~B5.50~CD' so.17

~LIn'OOO)
As III

OUAprl2U18
(495,920.18)f62,04873)
657,9n.911

Total Equity (Sharehokler'& fUl'Ids) under prevlolJ!t. GAAP
Fair Valuation of Financial Assets; - InvvlitmenIB
TQbaI equity uncle, 100 AS

(v) Impact on Cash FlOw Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
There were no difftlrefloll~ between the Statement of Cash Flows presented ur\de( Ind AS and the Previous GAAI-'.

Nobis to Flr5t-Ume Adoption:
Fair Valuation of Financial Asseb -Investments
Under the previous t.:;AA1-', InVestments in equity shares and verJture capital funds were c;lassified as; noo-current invlll6trnenls and were carried at cost or Net
f8alisabls valulI, whichever IS lower Untler Inti AS, Itlcse investments ere required to be measul'ltd olIIt fair value. The CompallY has dlOsen to fair vall,llllltles8
invutmonts through Profit & LO&6.

Nola No. 26
Going Concern:
The financiBl statements of the Company have been prepared on the principlQ6 of ~ go..,g concern balSis, which contemplated the r9allza~on ot aeut5 and the
:oo1l:.fcction of liabililil::s in the nannal course of buein_. The Comp1If1)' has been incurTing los,5.(fS;fOI th .. p""l r_ y~ar'S and its: net wor1rl 1'18' bQQn fUlly
eroded. Also, the Company's financial liabilities exc8flded its financial assets as on 31st March. 2020. TI'Ie!ie conditions indicate the existence or a material
uncertainty 1hat may cast significant doubt aboul U~ Conll-'<iIlY's Hbilily to conmue as a going conc(lm. However, In view of camtOlt receIVed from 1he
promotere to the effeGt ~ they will be oontinuing to provide financial support to lt1tI Company, ZICCOrdingly 1hese 1lrlanclal staterntmlH have been preparetl on
a going concern basis

Note No, 21
Exceptional item of R:r. 47,508.43 thousand for ttle year ended 31-Mar-2020 represetb ~itity f1Q lon~r payable written In:lck, consequent uoon settlement
witt1 e lender.

Note No. 21
Recent Accounting Prooouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MeN) notifies np.w s""ndards or amendments to the existing standards There Is no such notification which wouk:! have been
applicable for future periods.

Nola No. 29 - The financial statements were approved for issue by 1hs Board of Directors on June 30, 2020.

~ot8 No. 30 - The ftguree of the preVIous years Mve been regrouped or raclasaitiad wherever necessary to make them comparable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note No. 31
Additional Disclosure as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Non-Systemically Important No~8ank.ing Financial (Non-
Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015 by Reserve Bank of
India

PSI1iculaf'S' Amount
Outstanding

Amount
Overdue

UABIUTIES SIDE:
Loans and Advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

(a) Debentures:(oth@rthanfalling within the meaning of publiCdeposits)
- Secured Nil Nil
• Unsecured Nil Nil

(b) Deferred Credits Nil Nil
(c) Term Loans Nil Nil
(d) Inter-CorporateLoans and Borrowings 434,830,000 Nil
(e) Commercial Paper Nil Nil
(f) Other Loans (specify nature) Nil Nil

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (3) below) :
(a) Secured Nil
(b) Unsecured 17,940

Break up of Leased Assets and Stock on Hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities
(i) Lease assets including h1!8Serentals under sundry debtors:

(a) Financial lease Nil
(b) Operating lease Nil

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire Nil
(b) RepossessedAssets Nil

(iii) Other lo..n5 counting towards AFC activitieS:
(a) LoansWhereassets have been repossessed Nil
(b) Loans other than (a) above Nil

Breakup of Investments
Current Investments:
1. Quoted:

(I) Shares: (a) Equity Nil
(b) Preference Nil

(II) Debentures and Bonds Nil
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil

2. UnquOled:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity Nil

(b) Pr9ference Nil
(ii) Debenturesand Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify)

LongTennlnvestmenb:
1. Quoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity Nil
(b) Preference Nil

(ii) Debentures and Bonds Nil
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil

2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity Nil

, (b) Preference Nil
(II) Oebenturesand Bonds Nil
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil
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Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:

Amount Net of Provisions
category Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil
(b) Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nil
(c) Other related parties Nil Nil Nil

2. Other than related parties Nil 17,940 17,940

Total Nil 17,940 17,940

Investor group-wise classification of all Investments (current and long term) in shares and securities
(both quoted and unquOted):

Category
Market \laIue/. Book \la.kJe.

Breakup or Fair (Net of
Value or NAV Provisions)

Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

·Ammmt

Nil
Nil

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
(c) Other related parties

2. Other than Related Parties

Total

OtheJ:-iaf.~
(i) Gross Non-Perfonnlng Assets

(a) Related Parties
(b) Other than Related Parties

(ii) Net Non-Perfonnlng Assets
(a) Related Parties
(b) other than Related Parties

Nil
Nil

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt Nil

For and on behalf of Directors

~ .
k~~~~ :.,

PURIA A. A. JAlPURIA O. K. JAl1
Managing Director Director

DIN:00025537 DIN:00025586
Chief Financial

Officer
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